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Dear FerLrLow SHAREHOLDERS

FOLLOWING A TOUGH THREE YE.;\RS FOR THE LODGING
INDUSTRY AND FELCoOR LopGING TRUST,
I'M PLEASED TO REPORT THAT THERE IS POSITIVE REVENUE PER
AVAILABLE R‘odﬁ (RevPAR) IN THE AIR. BusiNess
1S IMPROVING AND WE ARE NOW OPTIMISTIC ABOUT THE
OUTLOOK FOR/200‘4..AT THE END OF 2003, THE SIGNS
INDICATED THAT WE WERE ENTGRING'A‘N’SW CYCLE OF POSITIVE
RevVPAR GROWTH. THE SIGNS REMAIN POSITIVE. FROIMA ’
DECEMBER 2003 THROUGH FEBRUARY 2004, WE HAVE HAD THREE

CONSECUTIVE MONTHS OF IMPROVING RevPAR.

One highlight of 2003 was that we exceeded 6ur expectations in
selling non-strategic assets. We knew that it was going to be a
challenging operating environment in -2063, and it was. In spite of
that, according to Smith Travel Research, our core hotels as a
group had a RevPAR penetration (a2 measure of their RevPAR perfor-
mance compared to their prirﬁary competitors) of 118.3 percent
during the year. In addition, we improved our financial flexibility by
completing a $150 million secured debt financing, which enabled
’us to pay off our line of credit and carry excess cash. We also obtained
a Com*mitﬁent of up to $'200 million through a secured debt facility
to cover the $175 million of our senior notes that mature in October
2004. We finished the year with $246 million of cash in the bank,
without having yet drawn on the $200 million facility.

Our primary objectives for 2004 are to continue to sell

non-strategic hotels and reduce our leverage. We continue to improve




the cémpetitive positioning of our hotels. In addition, we will evaluate
acquisition opportunities that meet our refined investment strategy.

Last year, we completed a comprehensive review of our invest-
ment strategy and hoktel(portfolio, and decided to sell under-perform-
ing hotels in secondary and tertiary markets, or in markets where we
had too much exposure. During 2003, we disposed of 16 non-strategic
hotels and two parking garages, realizing proceeds of approximately
$125 million. During 2003, we also identified 18 additional hotels
to sell over the next two years and had a total of 35 non-strategic
hotels at year-end 2003. We are focused on completing the disposition
of the 35 identified non-strategic hotels over the next two years.
We expect non-strategic hotel sales to generate appréximately $125
million in proceeds during 2004. We have made a good start in
that direction, having closed on the sale of four hotels from January
through March 2004, receiving gross proceeds of $30 million.

On the financial front, we are committed to de-leveraging
the Company. The financial initiatives we implemented in 2003 keep
us on course to maintain FelCor’s financial flexibility. We expect
to reduce our financial leverage in 2004, through both debt reduction
(including the retirement of the senior notes that mature in October)
and growth in earnings. v

On March 11, 2004, we made our first acquisition since
mid-2002. We acquired the 132-room Holiday Inn® in Santa Monica,
Calif., that is across the street from the Santa Monica Pier.
The hotel is an example of the type of great real estate that FelCor will
be acquiring in the future. We plan to focus our acquisition efforts
on higher quality upper upscale hotels in markets with significant

barriers to entry. We anticipate that this will lead to an increase
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in the number of our upper upscale properties, 1nclud1ng group
and resort destlnatxon propertles and greater diversification of our

portfoho by geographlc location, b¥and and-customer base.

Key 1ngred1ents to achlevmg our objectives are having a
strong management team and dedicated, self- motivated employees who
wotk hard and also en]oy what they do. Our culture embraces’

_our passion and enthu51asm for what we do; which translates into a
performance oriented company. ;

_ The outlook for 2004 and beyond is encouraging. Supply
growth is currently expected to remain below average historical levels
through~2_006.»Demand growth, which started in July of 2003, is
expected t.o‘con'tinue to improye’; Occupancy rates are rising. The
industry is regammg ‘control over room rates and rate pressure
is easing. The economy. is_ reboundlng We look forward to 1mprov1ng
results permlttlng FelCor ‘to.return to paying common dividends.

"We have taken the 1n1t1al steps toward a full recovery and we invite

you to share the ]ourney w1th _us’

|- ALL THE BEST,

~ 1]l Tom CORCORAN

PRESIDENT AND

CHIEE £xecutive OFFICER
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OURNEY BEGIN




/.,Mm/f”A/ #2.
PROGRESS 1S BeING MADe

During 2003, we completed a comprehensive review of
our investment strategy and hotel portfolio and identified smaller,
underperforming hotels, generally in secondary and tertiary
markets, that we wished to sell. As part of our disposition
strategy, our intent was to reduce our concentration in markets
such as Dallas and the state of Texas, as well as hotels in
other high supply growth markets.

We started the review process in 2000, prior to the
economic downturn, and at that time identified 26 non-strategic
hotels to sell. In 2002, we continued the review process,
identifying an additional 27 non-strategic hotels. Finally, we
completed the review in 2003 and identified an additional
18 hotels as non-strategic. The decision to sell 11 of the additional
hotels identified in 2003, which are managed by InterContinental
Hotels Group (IHG), was facilitated by an amendment to the
IHG management agreement, which allowed us greater flexibility
to sell underperforming hotels without penalty.

During 2003, we disposed of 16 non-strategic hotels and
two parking garages, resulting in approximately $125 million
in total proceeds. In the first quarter of 2004, we closed on an
additional four hotel sales, receiving proceeds of $30 million.

Our asset sale program has been, and continues to be,

a success. There is an active market for selling hotels today and
capital flows are strong.

We have continued to provide the necessary capital
spending for our hotels. In 2003, we spent $64 million, or five

percent of revenues, on capital expenditures.




“OUR ASSET SALE PROGRAM
HAS BEEN,
AND CONTINUES TO BE,

A SUCCESS.”

In March of last year, we re-branded an independent hotel
in Dallas to a Staybridge Suites®. The result has been an
impressive 31 percent increase in RevPAR since its conversion,
compared to the prior year.

During 2003, we also completed the renovation of our
Doubletree® hotel in Charlotte, N.C., and of our Hilton® hotel in
Myrtle Beach, S.C.

Our joint venture with Hilton Hotels to develop a 251-unit
residential condominium known as “Margate”, located in Myrtle
Beach, S.C., is progressing as planned. We expect the project
to be completed and sold in the third quarter of 2004, with an

estimated gain of $8 million.







* s

NN

WO
Q ///ﬂl“
%\‘




vimad oty 24
/ Y 5
EXAMINING THE TERRAIN

We have maintained strong relationships with our
brand managers: Hilton Hotels, InterContinental Hotels Group,
and Starwood Hotels & Resorts. These relationships are
important to our efforts to improve the competitive positioning
of our hotels.

Both our Embassy Suites Hotels® and Doubletree brands
increased market share in 2003 and we continue to be pleased
with their performance. The market penetration for our Embassy
Suites Hotels was up two percent in 2003, to 137 percent,
and our Doubletree hotels were up one percent, to 123 percent,
for the year.

Our Sheraton® hotels continued to show improvement
throughout the year. They finished strong, with positive RevPAR
and increased market penetration in the fourth quarter of 2003,
as a result of Starwood’s focus on improving the quality and
image of the Sheraton brand.

InterContinental Hotels Group continues to make changes
to drive returns and improve the overall operational performance
of its business. In April 2003, it split from Six Continents
PLC into two separately listed companies. During the year, they
also took action to realign their organization, make the business
more efficient, and ensure the right people were in the right
roles. Under the strong leadership of Steve Porter, President
of the Americas, their brands have new strategies and are
focused on increased performance.

In 2003, our brand managers rolled out ‘best rate guaran-
tees.’ Through renewed efforts by Starwood, Hilton Hotels,

and InterContinental Hotels over the past year, the brands remain




focused on recapturing more of their share of Internet
bookings by driving more traffic to their respective Web sites.
In addition, they have made strides to ensure price uniformity
and price integrity across all Web sites.

On the horizon, as demand strengthens, the brands
will reduce the supply of rooms provided to non-brand sites.
We anticipate that room supply will continue to be shifted to the
brands’ Web sites to better ensure brand integrity, pricing
and image.

These efforts should contribute to improving
revenues and margins from direct Internet bookings and help

us reach the summit.

/,MM/J)”/‘/ #5.

PROVIDING AN EVEN
CLoser Look
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FerLCoOR'S ROADMAP FOR 2004

In 2004, we are focused on selling our non-strategic
hotels and reducing our financial leverage. The first phase
of repositioning our portfolio is to sell non-strategic hotels.
At December 31, 2003, we had 35 non-strategic hotels, and
we expect sales proceeds to be approximately $250 million over
the next two years. For 2004, we are targeting $125 million
in sales proceeds.

We plan to be disciplined in executing our investment
strategy. Future acquisitions will fit within a well-defined set of
investment parameters. We are focused on upper upscale hotels
with an emphasis on urban markets and resort destinations in
low-supply growth markets with high barriers to entry. Although
our portfolio will become more concentrated in the upper
upscale segment, we expect greater diversification by geographic
market, brand, and customer base.

We are starting to acquire hotels selectively and replace
earnings lost through asset sales. On March 11, we acquired
the Santa Monica Holiday Inn, a 132-room hotel located on Ocean
Drive and across the street from the Santa Monica Pier.

During our journey, we will continue to provide the
necessary capital for our hotels to improve their competitive
positioning. To enhance our position in a lodging recovery,
we expect 2004 capital expenditures to be between $75 and

$100 million, or about six to eight percent of revenues.

16
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FeLCorR LopGgiNG TRUST PORTFOLIO
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163 HOTELS -

33 STATES & CANADA

4 TIME ZONES

(EXCLUDES HOTELS SOLD IN FIRST QUARTER 2004)

T

ALABAMA

BIRMINGHAM
E€mbassy Suites

MONTGOMERY
Holiday Inn - €ast -85

ARIZONA
PHOENIX
Embassy Suites - Phoenix
Biltmore
Embassy Suites - Tempe
Fairfield Inn -
Scottsdale/Downtown
Sheraton Crescent Hotel

CALIFORNIA
DANA POINT
Doubletree Guest Suites -
Doheny Beach
IRVINE
Crowne Plaza -
Orange County
Airport (Newport Beach)

LOS ANGELES
Embassy Suites - Anaheim
(Located near
Disneyland® Park)
Embassy Suites -
Los Angeles -
Covina/I-10
Embassy Suites -
€l Segundo -
International Airport -
South
MILPITAS
E€mbassy Suites -
Milpitas ~Silicon Valley
Crowne Plaza -
San Jose North
(Milpitas / Silicon Valley)
NAPA
E€mbassy Suites
OXNARD
Embassy Suites -
Oxnard-Mandalay
Beach Resort &
Conference Center

PALM DESERT
Embassy Suites -
Palm Desert Resort
PLEASANTON
Crowne Plaza
(San Ramon Area)
SAN DIEGO
Holiday Inn - On the Bay
SAN FRANCISCO
Crowne Plaza - Union Square
E€mbassy Suites -
Burlingame Airport
Embassy Suites -
South San Francisco
Airport
Holiday Inn -
Fisherman's Wharf
Holiday Inn Select -
Downtown Hotel & Spa
SAN RAFAEL
Embassy Suites -
Marin County/
Conference Center
SANTA BARBARA
Holiday Inn - Goleta




SANTA MONICA
Holiday Inn -
Beach at the Pier*

CoLorADO
AVON

Beaver Creek Lodge
DENVER

Doubletree - Aurora

CONNECTICUT
HARTFORD
Crowne Plaza -
Downtown
STAMFORD
Holiday Inn Select

DeLawaRre
WILMINGTON
Doubletree

FLoRrIDA
BOCA RATON
Embassy Suites
COCOA BEACH
Holiday Inn - Oceanfront
DEERFIELD BEACH
€mbassy Suites -
Deerfield Beach Resort/
Boca Raton
FT. LAUDERDALE
Embassy Suites - 17th Street
Sheraton Suites -
Cypress Creek
JACKSONVILLE
Embassy Suites -
Baymeadows
MIAMI
Crowne Plaza -
International Airport
{LeJeune Center)
Embassy Suites -
International Airport
ORLANDO
Doubletree Guest Suites -
Walt Disney World* Resort

E€mbassy Suites -
International Drive South/
Convention Center

Embassy Suites - North

Holiday Inn - Nikki Bird
{Maingate - Walt Disney

World * Area)

Holiday Inn - International
Drive Resort

Holiday Inn Select -
International Airport

TAMPA

Doubletree Guest Suites -
Tampa Bay

Holiday Inn -

Busch Gardens

GEORGIA
ATLANTA
Courtyard by Marriott -
Downtown
Crowne Plaza - Airport
Crowne Plaza - Powers Ferry
Embassy Suites - Airport
Embassy Suites - Buckhead
Embassy Suites ~
Perimeter Center
Fairfield Inn - Downtown
Holiday Inn - Airport-North
Holiday Inn -
South (1-75 & US 41)
Holiday Inn Select -
Perimeter/Dunwoody
Sheraton - Gateway -
Atlanta-Airport
Sheraton Suites - Galleria
BRUNSWICK
Embassy Suites
COLUMBUS
Holiday Inn ~
Columbus - North
(1-185 at Peachtree Mall)

ILLINOIS

CHICAGO
Crowne Plaza - The Allerton
Embassy Suites - Lombard/

Embassy Suites - Northshore/
Deerfield {Northbrook)

Sheraton Gateway Suites -
Chicago O’Hare Airport

MOLINE

Holiday Inn - Airport

Holiday Inn Express -
Airport Area

INDIANA
INDIANAPOLIS
Embassy Suites - North

Iowa
DAVENPORT
Holiday Inn

Kansas
HAYS
Hampton Inn
Holiday Inn
KANSAS CITY
Embassy Suites -
Overland Park
SALINA
Holiday Inn
Holiday Inn Express -
Hotel & Suites - I-70

KeNTUCKY
LEXINGTON
Hilton Suites -
Lexington Green

Sheraton Suites

LouisiaNa
BATON ROUGE
Embassy Suites
NEW ORLEANS
Embassy Suites
Holiday Inn -
Chateau LeMoyne
(in French Quarter/
Historic Area)
Holiday Inn -
French Quarter

Qak Brook
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MARYLAND
BALTIMORE
Embassy Suites -
BWI Airport

MASSACHUSETTS
BOSTON
Embassy Suites -
Marlborough
Holiday Inn Select -

Government Center

MIcHIGAN
TROY
Embassy Suites -
North (Auburn Hills)

MinNesoTA
BLOOMINGTON

Embassy Suites
MINNEAPOLIS

Embassy Suites - Airport

Embassy Suites - Downtown
ST. PAUL

Embassy Suites - Downtown

M1ss1Ss1PPI
JACKSON
Holiday Inn Hotel
& Suites - North
OLIVE BRANCH
Whispering Woods Hotel &
Conference Center

Mi1ssoURI
KANSAS CITY
E€mbassy Suites - Plaza
Holiday Inn - NE
1-435 North
(at Worlds of Fun®)
ST. LOUIS
Embassy Suites - Downtown
Holiday Inn - Westport

NeBRASKA

OMAHA
Crowne Plaza - Old Mill
Doubletree Guest Suites -

Central

Hampton Inn - Central
Holiday Inn - Central (I-80)
Holiday Inn Express Hotel &
Suites - Southwest
Homewood Suites

New JERSEY
PARSIPPANY
Embassy Suites
PISCATAWAY
Embassy Suites - Somerset
SECAUCUS
Crowne Plaza Suites -
Meadowlands
Embassy Suites -
Meadowlands

New Mexico
ALBUQUERQUE
Holiday Inn - Mountainview
(at 1-40 & 1-25)

NoRrRTH CAROLINA
CHARLOTTE
Doubletree Guest Suites -
SouthPark
Embassy Suites
RALEIGH
Doubletree Guest Suites

E€mbassy Suites - Crabtree

Onio
CLEVELAND
Embassy Suites - Downtown

OKLAHOMA
TULSA
Embassy Suites - [-44

PENNSYLVANIA
PHILADELPHIA
Crowne Plaza - Center City
Holiday Inn - Historic District
Sheraton - Society Hill
PITTSBURGH
Holiday Inn Select -
at University Center
(Oakland)

Soutn CAROLINA
CHARLESTON
Holiday Inn - Mills House
{Historic Downtown)
MYRTLE BEACH
Embassy Suites -
at Kingston Plantation
Hilton - Myrtle Beach Resort

TenNNessEE
KNOXVILLE
Holiday Inn - Central at
Papermill Road
NASHVILLE
Embassy Suites - Airport /
Opryland Area
Holiday Inn Select -
Opryland /
Airport (Briley Parkway)

Texas
AMARILLO
Holiday Inn - 1-40
AUSTIN
Doubletree Guest Suites
Embassy Suites - North
Holiday Inn - Town Lake
(Downtown Area)
BEAUMONT
Holiday Inn - I-10
(Midtown)
CORPUS CHRISTI
€mbassy Suites
DALLAS
Crowne Plaza - Market Center
Crowne Plaza -
North Dallas - Addison
{Near the Galleria)
Crowne Plaza Suites
Doubletree -
at Campbell Centre
Embassy Suites - DFW
International Airport South
Embassy Suites - Love Field
Embassy Suites -
Market Center

22




e

—

T

AR

T

Embassy Suites -
Park Central Area
Fairfield Inn - Regal Row
Hampton Inn - West £nd /
Convention Center
Harvey Hotel - DFW
International Airport North
Harvey Suites - DFW
International Airport North
Sheraton - Park Central
Staybridge Suites -
Dallas Park Central
Westin - Park Central
HOUSTON
Courtyard by Marriott -
Near the Galleria
Fairfield Inn - 1-10 East
Fairfield Inn -
Near the Galleria
Hampton Inn - 1-10 East

Holiday Inn Hotel
& Suites -
Medical Center
Holiday Inn Select -
Greenway Plaza Area
Holiday Inn Select -
1-10 West & Hwy. 6
(Park 10 Area)
MIDLAND
Holiday Inn -
Country Villa
ODESSA
Holiday Inn Express
Hotel & Suites
Holiday Inn Hotel
& Suites - Centre
SAN ANTONIO
Embassy Suites -
International Airport
Embassy Suites -

Holiday Inn - Downtown
{Market Square)
Holiday Inn Select -
International Airport
WACO
Holiday Inn - [-35

Utan
SALT LAKE CITY
Holiday Inn - Airport

VERMONT
BURLINGTON
Sheraton Burlington
Hotel & Conference Center

VIRGINIA
VIENNA
Sheraton Premiere
at Tysons Corner

Holiday Inn - N.W.I-10
Intercontinental Airport * Acquired in first quarter 2004
INTERNATIONAL: ReservATIONS:
CQURTYARD
CANADA BY MARRIOTT: 1-800-321-2211
TORONTO CROWNE PLAZA: 1-800-2-CROWNE
Holiday Inn - DOUBLETREE GUEST
Yorkdale SUITES & HOTELS: 1-800-222-TREE
Holiday Inn Select - EMBASSY SUITES HOTELS: 1-800-EMBASSY
Airport FAIRFIELD INN: 1-800-228-2800

HAMPTON INN:
HARVEY HOTELS:

HILTON
& HILTON SUITES:

HOLIDAY INN:
SHERATON:
STAYBRIDGE SUITES:
WESTIN:

1-800 HAMPTON
1-800-HARVEYS

1-800-HILTONS
1-80c-HOLIDAY
1-800-325-3535
1-800-621-0555
1-800-WESTIN

THANK YOQU, SHAREHOLDERS!
We're continuing the special rate offer to our shareholders at all FelCor-owned hotels. It’s one way to
show our appreciation for your loyalty to FelCor. The program is effective from March 1, 2004 to April 30, 2005,
For more details, go to www.felcor.com/shareholder and experience what makes our hotels great.

Or visit our Web site at: www felcor.com.
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS COMMON STOCK PRICE

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated 2003 2003 2002 2002
545 £. John Carpenter Freeway Quarter High Low High Low
Suite 1300, Irving, Texas 75062-3933 First ~ $1L87 $580 $2200 $1620
Phone 972.444.4900 Fax 972.444.4949 Second $893 3643 SA73  $1725

Third $nn $7.65 $1874  §1246
Fourth $1185 $10.00 $1315 $t02

Wel site: www.felcor.com
€-mail: information@felcor.com

FORM 10-K

A copy of FelCor’s Annual Report on Form 10-K SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK PRICE
filed with the Securities and £xchange Commission 2003 2003 2002 2002
will be furnished, without charge, to any Quarter  High Low High Low

First $2148 $1435 $2240 $20.00
Second $2029 51601 $2270 $21.95

Third §2295 $1975 $24.00 $19.60
Fourth $2450 $2205 $2150 $19.00

shareholder of the Company upon request to:
Investor Relations

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated

545 €. John Carpenter Freeway

Suite 1300, Irving, Texas 75062-3933

Phone 972.444.4900 SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK PRICE

2003 2003 2002 2002
Quarter High  Low  High  Low
First  $2451 $1615 $2485 $275
Second $2275  $17.55 $2570  $24.00
Third  $24.84 S5l $2504 $2.44
Founth $2570 $2325 $2460 $1975

A copy of FelCor's Annual Report on
Form 10-K is also available on the
Company's Web site, www.felcor.com

SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD
FelCor Lodging Trust had approximately
400 common shareholders of record

as of March 11, 2004.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
SunTrust Bank
Atlanta, Georgia

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,

Dallas, Texas

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE SYMRBOLS
FCH Common: FCH

For each of the last two years,

FelCor declared a quarterly dividend

of $0.4875 per share on its $1.95

Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock and $0.5625 per depositary

share on its 9% Series B Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock.

FelCor declared a common stock
dividend of $0.15 per share for each of the
four quarters in 2002 and did not

m Preferred A FCHpfA
IIRE  Preferred B: FCHpfB

declare a common stock dividend in 2003.

FelCor is the nation's second largest lodging real estate investment trust and the largest owner of upscale,
all-suite hotels. At December 31, 2003, FelCor's consolidated portfolio was comprised of 161 hotels,
located in 33 states and Canada. FelCor owns 71 upscale, all-suite hotels, and is the largest owner of Embassy
Suites Hotels and Doubletree Guest Suites® hotels. FelCor's portfolio also includes 75 hotels in the
upscale and full service segments. At December 31, 2003, we had an aggregate of 62,154,264 shares of FelCor
common stock, and units of FelCor LP limited partnership interest outstanding, The CEQ/CFO
certifications required by Section 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are filed as exhibits to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. Additional information can be found

on the Company’s Web site at; www felcor.com.
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS COMMON STOCK PRICE

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated 2003 2003 2002 2002
545 €. John Carpenter Freeway Quarter  High Low High Low
Suite 1300, Irving, Texas 75062-3933 First ~ $1187 $580 $200 $1620
Phone 972.444.4900 Fax 972.444.4949 Second $893  $643 $273  $17.25

Third sz $7.65 $18.74 31246
»}'ourth $11.85  $10.00 $13.15 $10.12

Web site: www.felcor.com
€-mail: information@felcor.com

FORM 10-K

A copy of FelCor's Annual Report on Form 10-K SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK PRICE
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 2003 2003 2002 2002
will be furnished, without charge, to any Quarter  High Low High Low

First $2148  $14.35 $2240 $20.00
Second $2029 $16.01 $2270 $21.95

Third $2295 $1975 $24.00 $19.60
Fourth $2450 $2205 $2150 $19.00

shareholder of the Company upon request to:
Investor Relations

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated

545 €. John Carpenter Freeway

Suite 1300, Irving, Texas 75062-3933

Phone 972.444.4900 SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK PRICE

2003 2003 2002 2002
Quarter High Low High Low
First $2451 $1615 $24.85 $2275
Second $2275  $1755 $25.70 $24.00
Third $24.84 $2151 $25.04 $244
Fourth $2570 $2325 §$24.60 $19.75

A copy of FelCor’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K is also available on the
Company’s Web site, www.felcor.com

SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD
FelCor Lodging Trust had approximately
400 common shareholders of record

as of March 11, 2004.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT For each of the last two years,

SunTrust Bank FelCor declared a quarterly dividend
Atlanta, Georgia of $0.4875 per share on its $1.95
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Stock and $0.5625 per depositary
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, share on its 9% Series B Cumulative
Dallas, Texas Redeemable Preferred Stock.
NEW YORK STOCK £EXCHANGE SYMBOLS FelCor declared a common stock

FCH Common: FCH dividend of $0.15 per share for each of the

Preferred A: FCHpfA four quarters in 2002 and did not
NYSE  preferrea: F CHpfB declare a common stock dividend in 2003.

FelCor is the nation’s second largest lodging real estate investment trust and the largest owner of upscale,
all-suite hotels. At December 31, 2003, FelCor’s consolidated portfolio was comprised of 161 hotels,
located in 33 states and Canada. FelCor owns 71 upscale, all-suite hotels, and is the largest owner of Embassy
Suites Hotels and Doubletree Guest Suites® hotels. FelCor’s portfolio also includes 75 hotels in the
upscale and full service segments. At December 31, 2003, we had an aggregate of 62,154,264 shares of FelCor
common stock, and units of FelCor LP limited partnership interest outstanding. The CEO/CFO
certifications required by Section 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are filed as exhibits to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003. Additional information can be found
on the Company's Web site at: www.felcor.com.




FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUPPLEMENT
TO
2003 ANNUAL REPORT

Selected FINAnCIal Data.. . icereiereeccerersiersssssrseessossrssesssssesssessessessanssessersassssssssssssesssossossosssess

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results 0f OPerations ......cccvcvciniecssninsicnsiseensnnnnsnenisneesssiesisscesssessssnsesssssessesseseses

Report of Independent Audltors ...................................................
Consolidated Balance SREets .........ouccivrierersienicnicssiisnnssnssssssssnsssssossesssssssessonsessiosassssssessase
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Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected financial data for us for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, 2001, 2000, and 1999 that has been derived from our audited financial statements and the notes thereto.
This data should be read in conjunction with “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations”, and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in

this financial information supplement to our 2003 annual report to stockholders.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 200200 20019 2000 1999

Statement of Operations Data:® -
TOta] TEVEIUES. ...vvevverrerrarressassersessisrnsssnsssssossoss $1,199,861 $1,242,185  $1,138325 § 512,928 § 468,052
Net income (loss) from continuing operations™  $(296,948) $ (111,389) $ (44,909) $ 51,258 $ 112,299
Net income (loss) from continuing operations

applicable to common stockholders™............. $(323,856) $ (137,681) $ (69,509) $ 26,576 $ 87,564
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations

applicable to common stockholders................ $ (552) % (2.54) 3 (1.32) § 048 § 1.30
Other Data:
Cash dividends declared Per common share®® ... $ 000 $ 060 §$ 170 8 220 8 2.20
Funds From Operations @ ..........cccooriveerrrnnnn. $(207,462) $ (60,018) $ 174,550 § 221,771 $ 285,782
FFO per share™ ........c..coovioeeiriieece e $ (335 $ (09 $ 262 % 330§ 3.80
EBITDA® ..o $ (32000 $ 144,163 $ 360,484 § 403,99 $ 431,576
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period): i
Total aSSetS .ovivrvreieiir e $3,590,893  $3,780,363  $4,079.485 $4,103,603  $4,255,751
Total debt, net of discount........ccovevvvivireceirinnnn. $2,037,355 $1,877,134  $1,938,408 $1,838,241  $1,833,954

(1) Includes hotel revenue and expenses with respect to 88 hotels that were leased to InterContinental Hotels Group, or THG,
prior to July 1, 2001. Prior to acquisition of these leases, our revenues with respect to these 88 hotels were comprised
mainly of percentage lease revenues. Accordingly, revenues, expenses and operating results for the year ended

December 31, 2002, are not directly comparable to the same period in 2001.
(2

Includes hotel revenues and expenses with respect to 96 hotels that were leased to either DJONT Operations, L.L.C. or

subsidiaries of IHG prior to January 1, 2001, and 88 hotels that were leased to IHG prior to July 1, 2001. Prior to the
acquisition of the leases, our revenues were comprised mainly of percentage lease revenues. Accordingly, revenues,
expenses and operating results for the year ended December 31, 2001, are not directly comparable to the same period in

2000.
)

December 31, 2003, as discontinued operations.

(4) Included in net income (loss) from continuing operations are the following amounts (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

All years prior to 2003 have been adjusted to reflect those hotels disposed of in 2003, or considered held for sale at

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
IMpairment 108S....ccoviovreereeeieieeis e e $(224,583) $(70,168) $ (6,273) $(53,856) $ -
Minority interest share of
impairment oSS .. vo..oocoveiivive e 1,770 - - - -
Charge off of deferred debt costs................... (2,834) (3,222) (1,270) (3,865) (1,113)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt ............ 1,611 - - - -
Abandoned projects.......ccoevereienienenennenn - (1,663) (837) - -
Lease termination COStS........ccoverrrrvvrnrencennns - - (36,604) - -
Merger termination COStS ........cvruvrerrvirereearanns - - (19,919) - -
Merger related financing costs .........coevvenee. - - (5,486) - -
Swap termination eXpense..........c..cevvrrvererene - - _(7.049) - -
8(224,036) $(75,053) §(77,438) § (57,721) 1,113
2




®)

©)

Although we had declared a quarterly common dividend on our common stock from our inception through 2002, as a result
of the uncertain geopolitical environment and soft business climate, together with the decline in margins resulting from
continued declines in our portfolio’s average daily rate, our board of directors suspended the payment of dividends on our
common stock in 2003. We have, however, continued to pay the full accrued dividends on our outstanding preferred stock
throughout 2003, ’

A more detailed description and computation of FFO and EBITDA is contained in the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures”
section of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Consistent with
SEC guidance, FFO and EBITDA have not been adjusted for the following amounts included in net income (loss) (in
thousands): ‘

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001® 2000 1999

Impairment loss: '

Continuing operations ............cc.ccervvne. $(224,583) $ (70,168) $(6,273) $(53.856¢) $ -

Discontinued operations...............c...... (20,926) (87,337 27 (5,144) -
Minority interest share of

impairment 108S .. «..coevvriererenieniennn 1,770 - - - -
Charge off of deferred debt costs.......... (2,834) (3,222) (1,270) (3,865) (1,113)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt .... 1,611 - - - -
Abandoned projects ........ccoeevrerenreenne - (1.663) (837 - -

$(244.962) $(162,390)  $(9,107)  $(66.865)

Per share amounts........cceceevvvvvvecrenne: 3395y 8§ (2.63) 3 (014 $ (099 3§ (0.01)

(a) In 2001, we excluded from FFO the following non-recurring charges: Merger termination costs of $20 million,
merger related financing costs of $6 million, swap termination costs of $7 million and lease termination costs of
$37 million. The merger termination costs, merger related financing costs, and swap termination costs related to
our proposed merger with MeriStar Hospitality Corporation, or MeriStar, that was terminated in September 2001
following the events of September 11, 2001. The lease termination costs related to our acquisition of our lessees
that occurred following the enactment of the REIT Modernization Act.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

Calendar years 2001 and 2002 produced the first two consecutive years of declining industry revenue
per available room, or RevPAR, since such statistics began to be compiled and, in 2003, industry RevPAR
improved by only 0.2%, compared to 2002. Primarily as a result of the concentration of our hotels in certain
markets, the RevPAR performance of our hotels was below the national average during the period. For the
year ended December 31, 2003, our consolidated hotel portfolio included in continuing operations experienced
a decline in RevPAR of 4.4%, compared to 2002, The decrease in year over year RevPAR (consisting mostly
of decreases in average daily rate, or ADR) resulted in lower revenues at our hotels, decreased operating
margin, as a percentage of total revenue, and a reduction in operating income. During 2003, we also recorded
impairment charges totaling $246 million, principally with regard to the 18 non-strategic hotels identified in
2003 that we expect to sell over the next two years and the further reduction in estimated fair market value
related to 17 hotels designated as non-strategic in 2002.

At December 31, 2003, we had cash on hand of approximately $246 million and estimated borrowing
capacity of $174 million under a secured debt facility. We have debt maturities of $175 million in 2004, but
no other significant nonextendable debt maturities until 2007.

Financial Comparison (in thousands, except RevPAR, operating margin and percentage change)

Years Ended December 31,

% Change % Change
2003 2002 2003-2002 2001 2002-2001
REVPAR ....oooviiiee e $ 59.19 $ 61.93 (4.4)% $ 67.72 (8.5)%
Hotel operating profit" ....................... 346,345 405,222 (14.6)% 358,674 13.1%
Operating margin®...............c..ccovvr.l 28.9% 32.7% (11.6)% 34.9% (6.3)%
Net loss from continuing operations®... (296,948) (111,389) (166.6)% (44,909) (148.0)%
Funds From Operations (“FFO”)"® .| (207,462) (60,018) (245.7)% 174,550 (134.4)%
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization
(“EBITDA™) VS e, (3,200) 144,163 (102.2)% 360,484 (60.0)%

(1) Included in the Financial Comparison are non-GAAP financial measures, including hotel operating profit,
operating margin, FFO and EBITDA. Further discussion and a detailed reconciliation of these non-GAAP
financial measures to our financial statements are found elsewhere in this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(2) Included in net loss from continuing operations are the following amounts (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
IMpairment 108S........ccevvivieeriiiirirece e $(224,583)  $(70,168) $ (6,273)
Minority interest share of impairment 108§ ..................... 1,770 - -
Charge off of deferred debt cOStS ....o.ccovvvienirincneiene (2,834) (3,222) (1,270)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt...........cc.cocccrnrenee 1,611 - -
Abandoned Projects........ccccvvcuveerniiiiiienin e - (1,663) (837)
Lease termination COSES ......cocververviriervverreensinreeeearanees - - (36,604)
Merger termination COStS ......ccevivvrirrrverierieririrereereeecans - - (19,919)
Merger related financing costs...........occcvvvveeniiiveiinnnane - - (5,486)
Swap termination eXpense........cccoccvvverivrnvecivrscricrninns (7.049)

$(224.036) §(75.053) $ (77,438)




(3) Consistent with SEC guidance on non-GAAP financial measures, FFO and EBITDA have not been
adjusted for the following amounts included in net loss (in thousands).

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001®

Impairment loss:

Continuing OPerations........ccovveerervererenrenreereererinneereenn, $(224,583) § (70,168) $(6,273)

Discontinued operations............ceevevrveveresiresreneanennens, (20,926) (87,337) (727)
Minority interest share of impairment 10SS..........ccccccvnirnen. 1,770 - -
Charge off of deferred debt costs......coevviiiiniiiiiicieeiens, (2,834) (3,222) (1,270)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt...........c.ccoconnnnnn. 1,611 - -
Abandoned Projects..........coooiviiiiiiiniiiii e, (1,663) (837)

$(244,962) $(162,390) $(0.107)

(a) In 2001, we excluded from FFO the following non-recurring charges: Merger termination costs of
$20 million, merger related financing costs of $6 million, swap termination costs of $7 million and
lease termination costs of $37 million. The merger termination costs, merger related financing costs,
and swap termination costs related to our proposed merger with MeriStar that was terminated in
September 2001 following the events of September 11, 2001. The lease termination costs related to
our acquisition of our lessees that occurred following the enactment of the REIT Modernization Act.

RevPAR and Hotel Operating Margin Decline

We have experienced declines in RevPAR from 2001 through 2003. An overall decline in both
business and leisure travel was reflected in a decrease in occupied rooms, or occupancy, during 2001 and 2002,
which led to declines in room rates as hotels competed more aggressively for guests, both of which had a
significant adverse effect on our RevPAR and operating performance. In 2003, our ADR continued to decline,
while occupancy declined only slightly, resulting in an overall RevPAR decline of 4.4% in 2003, compared to
2002. Due to the concentration of our hotels in certain markets that suffered more than average declines, our
RevPAR performance was below that of the industry average during this period. On a national basis, the hotel
industry experienced RevPAR declines of 2.5% in 2002 and 6.6% in 2001, and achieved a slight gain of 0.2%
in RevPAR during 2003.

Our hotel ADR from continuing operations declined 3.8% from those experienced in 2002, while our
occupancy decreased only slightly, to 62.4% in 2003, from 62.7% in 2002.

In 2003, our consolidated hotels included in continuing operations had a 380 basis point drop in hotel
operating margin from the prior year. The compression in margin was principally related to decreasing ADR
at our hotels, with relatively flat occupancy. Also affecting hotel margins were increases in employee health
and workers compensation insurance costs, repair and maintenance costs and utility costs.

We continue to actively work with our brand managers to increase revenues and control operating
costs, while still maintaining the satisfaction and security of our hotel guests.

Sale of Non-Strategic Hotels

In 2003, we completed a comprehensive review (that began in 2000) of our investment strategy and of
our existing hotel portfolio, as a result of which we decided to sell certain under-performing smaller hotels in
secondary and tertiary markets, markets with high supply growth, and markets in which we had an undesirable
concentration, such as Dallas. We had identified 53 hotels as being non-strategic by the end of 2002, and we
identified an additional 18 non-strategic hotels during 2003. At December 31, 2003, we had disposed of 36 of
the hotels so identified, had two hotels under firm contracts of sale with non-refundable deposits (which were
classified as “held for sale” and included in our discontinued operations) and had 33 remaining hotels
identified for sale over the following two years. As a result of our decision to undertake the sale of these non-
strategic hotels, we recorded impairment charges totaling $158 million during 2002 and $246 million during
2003 to reflect the difference between the book value and the then estimated fair market value of these hotels.
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At December 31, 2003, we had 161 hotels included in our consolidated operations, including the two
that were classified as “held for sale” and included in discontinued operations, and we had 33 remaining hotels
that had been identified as non-strategic. Also included in our discontinued operations at December 31, 2003,
were 16 hotels disposed of during 2003. Disposition proceeds from the 16 non-strategic hotels and two parking
garages sold during 2003 totaled approximately $125 million.

Through March 12, 2004, we had sold the two hotels “held for sale” at December 31, 2003, and two
additional non-strategic hotels, receiving gross proceeds of approximately $30 million, and we expect to dispose
of the remaining 31 non-strategic hotels over the next two years. We expect the aggregate gross sale proceeds
from the 35 non-strategic hotels owned by us at December 31, 2003, to be approximately $250 million.

The 33 non-strategic hotels included in our continuing operations at December 31, 2003, represented
20% of the rooms in our hotel portfolio, but less than 9% of our consolidated hotel operating profit in 2003.
The 2003 operating margin for these 33 non-strategic hotels was 17.9%, compared to 30.6% for the remainder
of our portfolio.

We have begun to consider the acquisition of hotels that meet our refined investment strategy. We
plan to focus our acquisition efforts on higher quality hotels in markets with significant barriers to entry, such
as central business districts and resort locations. We anticipate that this focus will lead to an increase in the
number of our upper upscale properties, group and resort destination properties and greater diversification of
our portfolio by geographic location, brand and customer base. In keeping with this strategy, in March 2004,
we purchased the 132-room Santa Monica Holiday Inn®. This hotel has a premier location across from the
Santa Monica Pier and the Santa Monica beaches and will continue to be operated as a full service upscale
hotel because of the high room rates charged in this market.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded a loss applicable to common shareholders of
$337 million, compared to a loss in 2002 of $205 million. The principal components of the loss in 2003 were
impairment charges of $246 million, primarily related to: our decision to sell 18 additional hotels over the next
two years; the decrease in hotel RevPAR of 4.4%, compared to 2002; and a 380 basis point decrease in
operating margin, and increases in workers compensation and employee health insurance, compared to 2002.

Our revenues from continuing operations for the full year 2003 were $1.2 billion, which reflected a
decline of 3.4%, compared to 2002. This decline in revenue principally resulted from a 4.4% decline in hotel
portfolio RevPAR, compared to full year 2002, Occupancy decreased 0.6%, to 62.4%, and average daily room
rate, or ADR, decreased 3.8%, to $94.92, compared to 2002. We attribute the decrease in ADR principally to
the continued weakness in corporate travel, from which we derive a significant portion of our hotel business.
Business travelers generally pay a higher room rate than other types of hotel guests and, in an effort to
maintain hotel occupancies, we have been accepting a larger amount of lower room rate business, which
adversely affects our operating margins.

The revenue decrease related to the RevPAR decline during 2003 was partially offset by $13 million
of increased revenues from the consolidation of our joint venture with Interstate Hotels & Resorts, and the
operating results of its eight hotels, in June 2003. This joint venture had been previously accounted for by the
equity method. '

The operating margin of our hotels included in continuing operations at December 31, 2003, was
28.9%, which represents a 380 basis point decrease, compared to 2002. The 2003 decrease in operating
margin principally resulted from the $3.78, or 3.8 % decline in ADR during the year. The decrease in ADR,
together with the slight decrease in occupancy, meant that our hotels served approximately the same number of
guests in 2003 as in 2002, but at lower revenues. In addition, increases in health and workers compensation
insurance and energy costs further decreased our operating margins, compared to 2002.
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We recorded impairment losses of $246 million in 2003 and $158 million in 2002. The impairment
losses in 2003 and 2002 principally resulted from our decision to sell non-strategic hotels, and reflects the
difference between the book value and the current estimated fair market value of these hotels. After the
completion of a comprehensive review of our investment strategy and our hotel portfolio, we refined our
investment strategy and decided to sell smaller hotels in secondary and tertiary markets, emphasize the
acquisition of higher quality hotels in low supply growth markets, and better diversify our portfolio by
geographic market, brand, and customer base.

At December 31, 2003, the 33 non-strategic hotels included in our continuing operations, represented
20% of the rooms in our hotel portfolio, but less than 9% of our consolidated hotel operating profit in 2003.
The 2003 operating margin for these 33 non-strategic hotels was 17.9%, compared to 30.6% for the remainder
of our portfolio.

Discontinued operations represent the hotel operating income, direct interest costs, impairment losses
and gains or losses on sale of the 16 non-strategic hotels sold during 2003 and the two hotels that were
designated as held for sale at December 31, 2003.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

On July 1, 2001, we acquired operating leases covering 88 of our hotels and contributed them to our
taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs. As the leases were acquired, we began receiving and recording hotel
revenues and expenses, rather than percentage lease revenue, for these hotels. Consequently, the historical
results for the year ended December 31, 2002, and the year ended December 31, 2001, are not directly
comparable.

We recorded a net loss applicable to cormmon shareholders of $205 million in 2002, compared to a net
loss of $64 million in 2001. The principal components of the 2002 loss were impairment related charges of
$158 million; the decrease in hotel RevPAR of 8.1%; and contraction of hotel operating margins, principally
associated with the decline in RevPAR.

Total revenue from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2002, increased
$104 million over 2001. The increase is principally associated with reporting hotel operating revenues for 76
of the hotels during the first six months of 2002, of $281 million, contrasted with percentage lease revenue we
reported for these hotels during the same period in 2001, of $107 million. This increase was partially offset by
a $62 million reduction in hotel operating revenues and an $11 million net reduction from the disposition and
acquisition of hotels during the periods reported.

Total operating expenses from continuing operations increased $97 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, over 2001. This increase primarily resulted from the inclusion of $191 million in hotel
operating expenses, management fees and other property related costs for the 76 hotels during the first six
months of 2002 that were not included in the same period of 2001, prior to our acquisition of the leases.
Offsetting this increase were $20 million of merger termination costs associated with the termination of the
MeriStar merger and $37 million of lease termination costs associated with the acquisition of hotel leases that
were recorded in 2001.

Taxes, insurance and lease expense decreased $9 million, principally as the result of decreases in lease
expense of $10 million, and real estate and other taxes of $4 million, partially offset by increased insurance’
costs of $5 million. The decrease in lease expense is related to participating leases that are based principally
on revenues. Property taxes decreased principally from the resolutions of prior year property tax disputes.

Included in the year ended December 31, 2002, were $2 million of abandoned project costs related to
our pursuit of a large portfolio acquisition. We were unable to reach mutually acceptable pricing and terms
with-the seller as a result of the uncertain operating environment and softening capital markets. The year
ended December 31, 2001, included $1 million of abandoned project costs.



Recurring interest expense, net of interest income, increased $6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, over 2001. The increase is primarily related to excess cash that we carried during 2002,
an increase in average debt outstanding of $45 million, over 2001, and higher average interest rates in 2002
resulting from our senior unsecured notes issued during 2001. The year ended December 31, 2002, included a
$3 million charge-off of capitalized costs from reduced line commitments. The prior year included $6 million
of merger related financing costs related to the $300 million in senior debt that was repaid in October 2001,
and a $1 million loss related to the charge-off of capitalized costs from reduced line commitments. Also in
2001, in connection with the issuance of favorably priced fixed rate debt and the prepayment of floating rate
debt, we terminated $250 million of interest rate swaps, resulting in a $7 million swap termination cost.

We recorded impairment related losses of $158 million during the fourth quarter of 2002. Of these
losses, $118 million primarily related to shorter holding periods associated with our recent decision to sell
33 hotels over the next 36 months. Six of these 33 hotels had been identified for sale in prior periods and were
included in the hotels for which an impairment loss of $7 million was recorded in 2001, Of the remaining
2002 impairment charge: $26 million related to two hotels held for investment that are not included in the
disposition plan and $13 million related to an other than temporary decline in the value of certain equity
method investments.

Equity in the income of unconsolidated entities decreased by $18 million, compared to 2001. The
decrease in 2002 principally resulted from the previously described $13 million impairment loss with respect
to certain equity method investments and an 8.6% drop in RevPAR from our unconsolidated hotels.

Partially offsetting the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2002, was a gain of $5 million on the
sale of retail space and $1 million on the sale of a hotel. The net loss for the year ended December 31, 2001,
was reduced by a gain of $3.0 million related to condemnation proceeds received.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2002 with Pro Forma 2001

On July 1, 2001, we acquired the operating leases covering 88 of our hotels and contributed them to
our TRSs. As the leases were acquired, we began receiving and recording hotel revenues and expenses, rather
than percentage lease revenue. Consequently, a comparison of historical results for the year ended
December 31, 2002, to the year ended December 31, 2001, may not be as meaningful as a discussion of pro
forma results. Accordingly, we have included a discussion of the comparison of the pro forma results of
operations. The pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2001, assumes that our
acquisition of the 88 hotel leases had occurred on January 1, 2001.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operating Income from Continuing Operations
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
Historical Pro Forma: Historical
2002 2001 2001

Total revenues $1,242,185 $1.359,986 $1,138,325
Operating expenses:

Hotel operating expenses 1,120,330 1,184,931 967,411

Abandoned project costs 1,663 837 837

Lease termination costs 36,604 36,604

Merger termination costs 19919 . 19.919

Total operating expenses 1,121,993 1,242,291 1,024,771

Operating income $§ 120,192 $ 117,695 $ 113,554

The 2001 Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operating Income is presented for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what the actual results of operations would have
been had the transaction previously described occurred on the indicated date, nor do they purport to represent
our results of operations for future periods.




The pro forma numbers presented represent our historical revenues and expenses, modified as
described in the pro forma adjustments below.

Pro forma adjustments:

(a) Total revenue adjustments consist of the increase in our historical revenue from the elimination of
historical percentage lease revenue and the addition of historical hotel operating revenues.

(b} Hotel operating expense adjustments consist of: (i) the increase in our historical operating expense
from the addition of historical hotel operating expenses and the elimination of percentage lease
expense for the 88 hotel leases acquired from IHG on July 1, 2001, (ii) the recording of management
fees at their new contractual rates, and (iii) the elimination of historical franchise fees, which are
included in the new management fees for these hotels.

Revenues from continuing operations decreased $118 million in 2002, compared to pro forma 2001.
The decrease in revenue resulted principally from a decline in both business and leisure travel for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to 2001, which reflected the weak economy and geopolitical uncertainties
during the period. During the year ended December 31, 2002, RevPAR for our hotels included in continuing
operations decreased 7.9%, compared to the prior year pro forma; the decline in RevPAR was comprised of a
decrease in hotel occupancy of 1.3 percentage points (or 2.0%), to 64.7%, and a decline in ADR of 6.0%, to
$103.37.

Hotel operating expenses from continuing operations decreased $120 million in 2002, compared to
pro forma 2001. This decrease is primarily related to a decrease in the expenses from hotel operations
associated with the 7.9% decrease in RevPAR. However, hotel operating expenses, as a percentage of total
revenue, increased from 87% to 90%. The principal reason for the increase in operating expenses, as a
percentage of total revenue, was a 220 basis point drop in hotel operating margins. This margin compression
primarily relates to the reduction in revenue and the inability to reduce labor costs, repair and maintenance
costs and marketing costs proportionately.

Included in the year ended December 31, 2002, were $2 million of abandoned project costs related to
our pursuit of a large portfolio acquisition. We were unable to reach mutually acceptable pricing and terms
with the seller as a result of the uncertain operating environment and softening capital markets. The year
ended December 31, 2001, included $1 million of abandoned project costs.

Included in the prior year were $37 million in lease termination costs, associated with the acquisition
of our hotel leases and $20 million of costs associated with the termination of the proposed MeriStar
Hospitality merger.

QOur operating income from continuing operations was $120 million in 2002, compared to pro forma
operating income of $118 million in 2001. The 2001 pro forma operating income included $57 million in
costs associated with abandoned project costs, lease termination costs and merger termination costs. The
principal reasons for this decline in pro forma total revenues and pro forma hotel operating expenses were an
7.9% decline in RevPAR and the contraction of hotel operating margins principally associated with the decline
in RevPAR.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Funds From Operations and EBITDA

Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets
diminish predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market
conditions, most industry investors consider supplemental measurements of performance to be helpful in
evaluating a real estate company’s operations. We consider Funds From Operations, or FFO, and Earnings
Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization, or EBITDA, to be supplemental measures of a REIT’s
performance and should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net income as a measure of our
operating performance.



The White Paper on Funds From Operations approved by the Board of Governors of the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, defines FFO as net income or loss (computed in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), excluding gains or losses from sales of property,
plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.
Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are calculated to reflect funds from operations
on the same basis. FFO and EBITDA are not measures of operating performance under generally accepted
accounting principles in the U.S., or GAAP. However, we believe that FFO and EBITDA are helpful to
management and investors as a supplemental measure of the performance of an equity REIT. We compute
FFO in accordance with standards established by NAREIT. This may not be comparable to FFO reported by
other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT definition, or that interpret the
current NAREIT definition differently than we do.

FFO and EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to net income, operating profit, cash
flow from operations, or any other operating performance measure prescribed by GAAP. Neither should FFO,
FFO per share and EBITDA be considered as a measure of our liquidity or indicative of funds available for our
cash needs, including our ability to make cash distributions. FFO per share does not measure, and should not
be used as a measure of amounts that accrue directly to stockholders’ benefit.

The following tables detail our computation of FFO and EBITDA (in thousands):

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to FFO
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 20017
Per Share Per Share Per Share
‘ ‘ Dollars: Shares Amount Dollars Shares Amount Dollars Shares Amount
Netloss........coooveevveiiiieiieeeennn, $(310,144) 58,657 $(5.29) $(178,581) 54,173 $(3.29) $(39,276) 52,622 $(0.75)
Depreciation from
continuing operations........... 134,883 2.30 143,978 2.66 149,217 2.84
Depreciation from :
unconsolidated entities
and discontinued operations. 15,152 0.26 20,455 0.38 19,357 0.37
Gain on sale of assets................ (2,668) (0.05) (5,861) 0.11) - -
Preferred dividends................... (26,908) (0.46)  (26,292) (0.49)  (12,938) (0.25)
SWAP termination costs........... - - - - 7,049 0.13
Merger costs:
Termination costs ................ - - - - 19,919 0.38
Financing costs......c.....c.e..... - - - - 5,486 0.10
Lease termination costs............. - - - - 36,604 0.70
Minority interest in :
FelCor LP....covvvvveeiiecenen, (17.777) 3,188 (0.11) _(13.,717) _7.564 (0.12) (10,868) 14,053 (0.90)
FFO............ teerrree e - $(207.462) 61.845 $(3.35) $(60,018) 61,737 $(0.97) $174,550 66,675 $ 2.62
Year Ended December 31,
2000 1999
Per Share Per Share
Dollars Shares Amount Dollars Shares Amount
NEtINCOME .....ooioveiiiiiiie et $ 61,700 55,519 $1.11  $131,079 67,581 $1.94
Depreciation from continuing operations...............c..c.... 152,266 2.74 145,065 1.11
Depreciation from unconsolidated entities
and discontinued Operations ..........ccoveeeveeriiecreennennn 18,646 0.34 17,878 0.14
Gain on sale 0f @SSetS.....c..ccciveiviiiiiieeniierere e (2,595) - (0.05) - -
Preferred dividends............ocovevveivinieinineeeee e (12,938) (0.23) (12,937) (0.10)
Minority interest in
FelCor LP ..o e 4,692 11,693 (0.61) 4,697 7.670 0.71
FFO ..ottt rbe e etva e $221.771 67,212 $3.30 $285.782 75,251 $3.80

(' EFO has been adjusted to conform to SEC guidance on non-GAAP financial measures.
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Consistent with SEC guidance on non-GAAP financial measures, FFO has not been adjusted for the
following amounts included in net income (loss) (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

IMPAirmMent 108S.......cooerievee et $(245 509) $(157, 505) $(7, 000) $(63, 000) 5 -
Minority interest share of impairment loss .............. 1,770
Charge-off of deferred debt costs ........ccccevveniennee. (2,834) 3, 222) (1 270) 3, 865) (1, 113)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt.................... 1,611
Abandoned projects .......c.cccceveeeenrecmicininieonneieeens - (1 663) L37) -

$(244,962) $(162.390) $(9,107) $(66.865) $( 1,11 )
Per share amounts ...........ccoceceveererrereienenceenierennenas $ (395 8 (2.63) $(0.14) § (0.99) $ (0.01)

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to EBITDA
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 20020 2000™ 2000 19997
Net income (1088) ......c.ooooiiiiniiiicincciececeeeer e $(310 144) $(178 581) $(39 276) $61,700 $131 079
Depreciation from continuing operations ............ 134,883 143,978 149,217 152,266 145,065
Depreciation from unconsolidated
entities and discontinued operations ................. 15,152 20,455 19,356 18,646 17,878
Gain on sale 0f aSSELS....ceerrvrrevceniveeenerenererienan, (2,668) (5,861) - (2,595) -
Minority interest in FelCor Lodging LP .............. 17,777y  (13,717) (10,868) 4,692 4,697
SWAP termination COSS ..ocovvviiiveerrirerieeireeerrrennns - - 7,049 - -
Merger costs:
Termination COStS........cooevvereerreeeivereeeerreessraneens - - 19,919 - -
FINancing CoStS....covuumrevrmreernrereseernereeseeeeenne - - 5,486 - -
Lease termination COSS.......ouevrervereerairerreesueeeennn. - - 36,604 - -
INterest EXPenSe......ccoivvvevreruesrrerieensrersnenansonnenns 167,581 164,917 159,780 156,944 123,726
Interest expense from unconsolidated
entities and discontinued operations ................. 7,563 10,884 11,124 10,863 8,438
AmOrtization eXPense ........coovreveeuermerearereennsinenen: 2.210 2,088 2,093 1.480 693
EBITDA ..ot $ (3.200) $144.163 $360.484 $403.996 $431.576

VEBITDA has been adjusted to conform to SEC guidance on non-GAAP financial measures.

Consistent with SEC guidance on non-GAAP financial measures, EBITDA has not been adjusted
for the following amounts included in net income (loss) (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Impairment 108s........ccocoorerireererecrieer e, $(245,509) $(157,505) $(7,000) $(63,000) $ -
Minority interest share of impairment loss .............. 1,770 - - - -
Charge-off of deferred debt COsts ........cccereieererennn, (2,834) (3,222)  (1,270) (3,865) (1,113)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt...................... 1,611 - - - -
Abandoned pProjects ........cceevmivinnnicncriicenineneseine - (1.663) (837) -

$(244.962) $(162,390) $(9,107) $(66,865) $(1,113)
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Hotel Operating Profit and Operating Margin

Hotel operating profit and operating margin are commonly used non-GAAP measures of performance
that we utilize to measure the relative performance of our individual hotels and groups of hotels and give
investors a more complete understanding of the operating results over which our individual hotels and
operating managers have direct control. We believe that hotel operating profit and operating margin are useful
to investors by providing greater transparency with respect to significant measures used by management in
its financial and operational decision-making.

Hotel Operating Profit
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002 2001

TOtal TEVEINUE ......eeiiiiiiiii et e e e errneer e e e e eas $1,199,861 $1,242,185  $1,138,325

Percentage 1ease revVenue........coevcvevevieeivinivnicnniieniiees e - - (107,202)

Retail space rental and other revenue.........ccccoeevniiiniiiinnnn, (1,022) (1,646) (2,990)

HoOtel TEVENUE. ..ot iiises s e evsr e s ss e e avasaens 1,198,839 1,240,539 1,028,133

Hotel operating eXpenses. .........occvvvevrierierineecnaicnnneennnnn_(852,494) _(835.317) (669.459)

Hotel operating profit..........ccocovviiiiniiniiniii $ 346,345 § 405,222 $ 358,674

Operating Margin® ............ccccocovvrvirrerireisieree e, 28.9% 32.7% 34.9%

N Hotel operating profit as a percentage of hotel revenue.

Hotel Operating Expense Composition
(dollars in thousands)
Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Hotel departmental expenses:

ROOML....coeiviiieiiietii ettt e es s § 255,102 $ 249,120 $ 201,554
Food and beverage .........coccveveveiecieniieice e 150,975 153,123 114,071
Other operating departmentS.......c..ccovvvenirreruecennencrnerernnens 30,011 29,913 25,333

Other property related costs:

Administrative and general............ccoccerveniriinenieseeeannnienens 116,641 116,073 93,002
Marketing and advertising .......cc.ccvvcvevvrnereeeniecrenrenenieneens 104,507 100,215 82,356
Repairs and maintenance ..........c.c.oveeeervneneensicneceeenieneneas 69,171 65,274 51,573
23 1157 ¢ OO OO U U TURUUP R TRUUUPR 62,974 58.249 46,289

Total other property related COStS.......ovvmviecierencerienreenineees 353,293 339,811 273,220

Management and franchise fees..........ccoovvcervvvcenivinnnienenenne 63,113 63.350 55,281

Hotel operating eXPenses .......cccovveecrerveeevrercreiieanrieseesesserensenaes $ 852,494 § 835317 $ 669,459

Reconciliation of total operating expense to hotel operating expense:

Total OPErating EXPEIISES. .....c.vcvvvverrirersirerarreeersessesaseessaseesersens $1,126,971 $1,121,993 $1,024,771
Taxes, insurance and lease eXpense ..........coceeereereerererennnns (125,328) (127,279) (136,057)
Abandoned ProJECtS ......cvieveererereriereeriieisereseeseneeeeseseseseas - (1,663) (837)
Lease termination COSES.......ccvvieririeeiieriennriesteeriesraeereareessnanees - - (36,604)
Merger termination COSS .....cverierverieereerinnrrrreeaesreraseasenssaseas - - (19,919)
COTPOTALE EXPEISES .vevveveiriereeereerraerrerressesesesaeassrasasseasessersnens (14,266) (13,756) (12,678)
DEPTECIALION....vecvirieieieiteieriee et ettt ss et se e e reeaes (134,883) (143.978) (149.217)

Hotel operating eXpenses ......cc..oeverereererrererereesrvererneensesensenns $ 852494 $ 835317 $_ 669459
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Qur principal source of cash to meet our cash requirements, including distributions to stockholders
and repayments of indebtedness, is from the results of operations of our hotels. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, net cash flow provided by operating activities, consisting primarily of hotel operations,
was $41 million. At December 31, 2003, we had cash on hand of approximately $246 million. Included in
cash on hand are approximately $25 million held under our hotel management agreements to meet our hotel
minimum working capital requirements and $14 million held in escrow under certain of our debt agreements.

We currently expect that our cash flow provided by operating activities for 2004 will be
approximately $56 million to $62 million. These cash flow forecasts assume a RevPAR increase of 3% to 4%,
hotel operating margin flow-through of 1.4 to 1.6 times, sales of approximately $125 million in non-strategic
hotels and debt reduction of $192 million. In 2004, our current operating plan contemplates that we will make
preferred dividend payments of $27 million, capital expenditures of approximately $75 to $100 million, debt
maturities of $175 million, and $17 million in normal recurring principal payments. We expect cash necessary
to fund cash flow shortfalls and distributions, if any, will be funded from our cash balances, proceeds from the
sale of hotels, and the $174 million currently estimated to be available to us under our secured debt facility.
We currently anticipate that our board of directors will defer the resumption of common dividends until the
anticipated recovery in our business is more firmly established, and to determine the amount of preferred and
common dividends, if any, for each quarterly period, based upon the actual operating results of that quarter,
economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and capital requirements, as well as the
minimum REIT distribution requirements.

Events, including the threat of additional terrorist attacks, U.S. military involvement in the Middle
East and the bankruptcy of several major corporations, had an adverse impact on the capital markets during
2003. Similar events, such as new terrorist attacks or additional bankruptcies could further adversely affect the
availability and cost of capital for our business. In addition, should the anticipated recovery of the overall
economy and of the lodging industry fail to materialize or stall, that too could adversely affect our operating
cash flow and the availability and cost of capital for our business.

As a consequence of the prolonged economic slowdown, its impact on the travel and lodging
industries and our higher secured debt levels, Moody’s lowered its ratings on our $1.2 billion in senior
unsecured debt one level, to Bl in June 2003. This downgrade, along with a similar downgrade by Standard &
Poor’s earlier in 2003 to B, triggered a 50 basis point step-up in interest rates on $900 million of our
outstanding senior unsecured debt. In the fourth quarter 2003, Standard & Poor’s further reduced its rating on
our senior unsecured debt to B-. The obligation to pay this increased interest rate will continue in effect unless
and until either Moody’s raises its rating on our senior unsecured debt to Ba3 or Standard & Poor’s increases
its rating to BB-.

We are also subject to the risks of fluctuating hotel operating margins at our hotels, including but not
limited to increases in wage and benefit costs, repair and maintenance expenses, utilities, insurance, and other
operating expenses that can fluctuate disproportionately to revenues. These operating expenses are difficult to
predict and control, resulting in an increased risk of volatility in our results of operations. The economic
slowdown and the sharp drop in occupancy and ADR that began in 2001, have resulted both in declines in
RevPAR and in an erosion in our operating margins. Our operating margins have dropped from 34.9% in
2001, to 32.7% in 2002 and 28.9% in 2003. If the declines in hotel RevPAR and/or operating margins worsen
or continue for a protracted time, they could have a material adverse effect on our operations, earnings and
cash flow.

In June 2003, we entered into a new secured delayed draw facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank for up
to $200 million. Through the date of this filing, there have been no borrowings under this facility, and we
have an estimated $174 million of borrowing capacity based on the underwritten cash flows of the 14 hotels
currently securing this facility. The amount available to us under this facility will fluctuate, prior to conversion
into commercial mortgage backed security (CMBS) loans, depending upon the number of hotels provided as
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security and the underwritten cash flows of those hotels, from time to time. This non-recourse facility has an
initial term of 18 months that can be extended for an additional six months at our option and carries a floating
interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25 to 2.75 percent. The outstanding balances on this loan facility will be
converted by the lender into fixed rate or floating rate CMBS loans, and we have a one-time option to convert
up to $75 million in borrowings to a floating rate CMBS loan. Upon conversion, the fixed rate loans will have
a term of 10 years and any floating rate loans will have a maximum term of five years.

In 2003, by amendment, we reduced our unsecured line of credit commitments from $300 million to
$50 million and obtained more relaxed covenant levels. In March 2004, we elected to terminate our line of
credit, which is expected to result in the first quarter charge-off of unamortized loan costs of approximately
$0.3 million and produce cash savings of approximately $0.4 million during the remainder of 2004. At
December 31, 2003, and at the date of termination of the line of credit, there were no borrowings under the line
of credit, and we were in compliance with all of the applicable covenants.

Most of our mortgage debt is non-recourse to us and contains provisions allowing for the substitution
of collateral upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Most of our mortgage debt is prepayable, subject to
various prepayment penalties, yield maintenance or defeasance obligations.

Our publicly-traded senior unsecured notes require that we satisfy total leverage, secured leverage and
an interest coverage tests in order to: incur additional indebtedness except to refinance maturing debt with
replacement debt, as defined under our indentures; pay dividends in excess of the minimum dividend required
to meet the REIT qualification test; repurchase capital stock; or merge. As of the date of this filing, we have
satisfied all such tests, however, under the terms of two of our indentures, we are prohibited from repurchasing
any of our capital stock, whether common or preferred, subject to certain exceptions, so long as our debt-to-
EBITDA ratio, as defined in the indentures, exceeds 4.85 to 1. Our current debt-to-EBITDA ratio exceeds that
ratio and is expected to do so for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, we are prohibited from purchasing any
of our capital stock, except as permitted under limited exceptions, such as from the proceeds of a substantially
concurrent issuance of other capital stock.

If actual operating results fail to meet our current expectations, as reflected in our current public
guidance, or if interest rates increase unexpectedly, we may be unable to continue to satisfy the incurrence test
under the indentures governing our senior unsecured notes. In such an event, we may be prohibited from
utilizing the undrawn amounts currently available to us under our secured debt facility, except to repay or
refinance maturing debt with similar priority in the capital structure, and may be prohibited from, among other
things, incurring any additional indebtedness or paying dividends on our preferred or common stock, except to
the extent necessary to satisfy the REIT qualification requirement that we distribute currently at least 90% of
our taxable income. In the event of our failure of this incurrence test, based upon our current estimates of
taxable income for 2004, we would be unable to distribute the full amount of dividends accruing under our
outstanding preferred stock in 2004 and, accordingly, could pay no dividends on our common stock.

We currently anticipate that we will meet our financial covenant and incurrence tests under the
RevPAR guidance provided by us at our fourth quarter earnings conference call on February 5, 2004. For the
first quarter of 2004, we currently anticipate that our portfolio RevPAR will be 1.5% to 2.5% above the
comparable period of the prior year. The RevPAR increase in 2004, compared to the same periods in 2003,
was approximately 2.2% for January and 1.0% for February. We currently anticipate that full year 2004 hotel
portfolio RevPAR will increase approximately 3% to 4%. For 2004 we expect to make capital expenditures of
$75 to $100 million, and we anticipate selling approximately $125 million in non-strategic hotels. We
estimate that our net loss for 2004 will be in the range of $49 to $55 million or $0.83 to $0.93 per share. FFO
per share, for the year 2004, is anticipated to be within the range of $0.76 to $0.86, and EBITDA is expected to
be within the range of $249 to $255 million. Our FFO and EBITDA estimates include an $8 million gain
expected on the sale of a 251 -unit residential condominium development expected to be completed and sold in
2004. No other transaction gains or losses are included in these earnings estimates.
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Reconciliation of Estimated Net Loss to Estimated FFO and EBITDA
(in millions, except per share and unit data)

Full Year 2004 Guidance

Low Guidance High Guidance
Per Share Per Share
Dollars Amount® Dollars  Amount

INELIOSS ..ottt e ettt s aeeens $ (55 $ (0.93) $ (49 $ (0.83)

Depreciation. ....c.c.vvveeireieireeirreeeenerss et s 133 ‘ 133

Preferred Dividends ... e 27 27

Minority interest in FelCor LP........c..cccocniievnniniiccniene ) 4)
FFO oottt et $ 47 $ 076 § 33 § 086
INELLOSS ...ttt v e tes b re e ens $ (55) $ 49

DEPreCiAtION. 1.vvevieveereiesievieerrteesrertee s s eesrevaese e saerbsaeeresaaseees 133 133

Minority interest in FelCor LP ..o G 4

INterest EXPENSE. .. cccvererivririririisieere e esren sttt e 172 172

AMOTtiZAtiON EXPENISE ...vvvevereirerrerieresrerrerreresrrenssesearessrssarensens _ 3 3
EBITDA ..ot $ 249 $_255

(a) Weighted average shares are 58.9 million. Adding minority interest and unvested restricted stock of
3.4 million shares to weighted average shares, provides the weighted average shares and units of
62.3 million used to compute FFO per share.

The following details our debt outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

Balance Qutstanding
Encumbered  Interest Rate at Maturity  December 31, December 31,
Hotels  December 31, 2003 Date 2003 2002
Promissory note none 3.12® June 2016 $ 650 $ 650
Senior unsecured term notes none 4.36% Oct. 2004 174,888 174,760
Senior unsecured term notes none 5.19® Oct. 2007 124,617 124,518
Senior unsecured term notes none 10.00 Sept. 2008 596,865 596,195
Senior unsecured term notes none 9.00 June 2011 298.158 297,907
Total unsecured debt™® 8.42 1,195.178 1,194,030
Secured debt facility 14 hotels - December 2004 - -
Mortgage debt 10 hotels 3.62@ May 2006 148,080 -
Mortgage debt 15 hotels 5.96@ Nov. 2007 131,721 134,738
Mortgage debt 7 hotels 7.54 April 2009 92,445 94,288
Mortgage debt 6 hotels 7.55 June 2009 69,566 70,937
Mortgage debt 8 hotels 8.70 May 2010 178,118 180,534
Mortgage debt 7 hotels 8.73 May 2010 138,200 140,315
Mortgage debt 1 hotel 4.0® August 2008 15,500 -
Mortgage debt 1 hotel 7.23 October 2005 11,286 54,993
Mortgage debt 8 hotels 7.48 April 2011 50,305 -
Other 1 hotel 9.17 August 2011 6,956 7.299
Total secured debt 78 hotels 6.98 842,177 683.104
Total® 7.82% $2.037,355  $1,877,134
(a) Variable interest rate based on LIBOR, which was 1.1% as of December 31, 2003.
(b) These notes were matched with interest rate swap agreements that effectively convert the

fixed interest rate on the notes to a variable interest rate based on LIBOR.
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(©) Interest rates are calculated based on the weighted average outstanding debt at December 31,
2003.

(d) Variable interest rate based on LIBOR. This debt may be extended at our option for up to
two, one-year periods.

(e $100 million of this note was matched with interest rate swap agreements that effectively
convert the fixed interest rate on this note to a variable interest rate based on LIBOR.

The fixed rates receivable and the variable rates payable by us under our interest rate swéxps, at
December 31, 2003, are summarized in the following table:
Weighted-average

Notional Amount Number of Spread Paid in Fixed Rate

Swap Maturity (in millions) Swaps Excess of LIBOR Received
October 2004 $175 6 3.20% 7.38%
October 2007 125 5 4.03% 7.63%
November 2007 100 4 4.35% 7.46%
$400 3.77% 7.42%

During 2003, we spent an aggregate of $68 million on capital expenditures, including our pro rata
share of capital improvements made by our unconsolidated joint ventures.

Contractual Obligations

We have obligations and commitments to make certain future payments under debt agreements and
various contracts. The following schedule details these obligations at December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Less Than 1-3 4-5 After
Total 1Year Years Years 5 Years
Debt $2,041,608 $192,333 $184,417 $888,093 $776,765
Purchase obligations 25,342 25,342 - - -
Operating leases 266,444 38,716 71,668 23,182 132,878
Total contractual obligations $2.333394 3256.391 $256,085 $911,275 $909.643

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2003, we had unconsolidated 50% investments in ventures that own an aggregate of
20 hotels (referred to as hotel joint ventures), and we had unconsolidated 50% investments in ventures that
operate four of those 20 hotels (referred to as operating joint ventures). We own 100% of the lessees operating
15 hotels owned by the hotel joint ventures and one hotel joint venture is operated without a lease. We also
owned a 50% interest in entities that provide condominium management services and develop condominiums
in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. None of our directors, officers or employees owns any interest in any of
these joint ventures or entities. The hotel ventures had approximately $214 million of non-recourse mortgage
debt relating to the 20 hotels. This debt is not reflected as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet.

Our liability with regard to non-recourse debt and the liability of our subsidiaries that are members or
partners in joint ventures are generally limited to the guarantee of the borrowing entity’s obligations to pay for
the lender’s losses caused by misconduct, fraud or misappropriation of funds by the venture and other typical
exceptions from the non-recourse provisions in the mortgages, such as for environmental liabilities.

At December 31, 2003, our unconsolidated joint venture that is developing a residential condominium
project in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina, had a $98 million full recourse construction loan. The anticipated
completion date of this development is late 2004, We and our joint venture partner Hilton, have each
guaranteed 50% of the amount outstanding under this loan. At December 31, 2003, $61 million had been
drawn under this loan, of which we have guaranteed our 50% share. Our 50% share of the entire amount
available under the construction loan is $49 million. Our guarantee reduces from 50% to 25% of the
outstanding balance when the project is completed. In addition, we have guaranteed a $143,000 full recourse
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loan to one of out 50% owned unconsolidated hotel ventures. The following schedule details these guaranty
obligations and maturity dates at December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Total Amounts
Committed 2004 2005

Loan guarantees $30,861 $143 $30,718

We have recorded equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities of $2 million, $(10) million
(including an impairment loss of $13 million), and $7 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively, and received distributions of $9 million, $11 million, and $8 million for the years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The principal source of income for our hotel joint ventures is percentage lease
revenue from the operating lessees. We own 100% of the operating lessees for 15 of the hotel joint ventures.
The operating lessees with respect to these 15 hotel joint ventures incurred losses, which were included in our
consolidated statements of operations, of $4 million, $1 million and $1million for the years 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Capital expenditures on the hotels owned by our hotel joint ventures are generally paid from their
capital reserve account, which is funded from the income from operations of these ventures. However, ifa
venture has insufficient cash flow to meet operating expenses or make necessary capital improvements, the
venture may make a capital call upon the venture members or partners to fund such necessary improvements.
It is possible that, in the event of a capital call, the other joint venture member or partner may be unwilling or
unable to make the necessary capital contributions. Under such circumstances, we may elect to make the other
party’s contribution as a loan to the venture or as an additional capital contribution by us. Under certain
circumstances, a capital contribution by us may increase our equity investment to greater than 50% and may
require that we consolidate the venture, including all of its assets and liabilities, into our consolidated financial
statements.

Effective June 1, 2003, we made a $0.2 million capital contribution to our hotel joint venture with
Interstate Hotels & Resorts, which increased our ownership in that venture to more than 50 percent. Asa
result, we then began consolidating the venture and the operations of its eight hotels. The consolidation of this
venture increased our investment in hotels by $73 million, our debt by $51 million and reduced our investment
in unconsolidated entities by $19 million. In 2003, we also made loans to this venture aggregating
$1.7 million and our partner made loans to the venture aggregating $0.9 million.

With respect to those ventures that are partnerships, any of our subsidiaries that serve as a general
partner will be liable for all of the recourse obligations of the venture, to the extent that the venture does not
have sufficient assets or insurance to satisfy the obligations. In addition, the hotels owned by these ventures
could perform below expectations and result in the insolvency of the ventures and the acceleration of their
debts, unless the members or partners provide additional capital. In some ventures, the members or partners
may be required to make additional capital contributions or have their interest in the venture be reduced or
offset for the benefit of any party making the required investment on their behalf. In the foregoing and other
circumstances, we may be faced with the choice of losing our investment in a venture or investing additional
capital under circumstances that do not assure a return on that investment.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2003, approximately 73% of our consolidated debt had fixed interest rates.
Currently, market rates of interest are below the rates we are obligated to pay on our fixed-rate debt.

The following tables provide information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes
in interest rates, including interest rate swaps and debt obligations. For debt obligations, the tables present
scheduled maturities and weighted average interest rates, by maturity dates. For interest rate swaps, the tables
present the notional amount and weighted average interest rate, by contractual maturity date. The fair value of
our fixed rate debt indicates the estimated principal amount of debt having the same debt service requirements
that could have been borrowed at the date presented, at then current market interest rates. The fair value of our
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fixed to variable interest rate swaps indicates the estimated amount that would have been received or paid by
us had the swaps been terminated at the date presented.

Expected Maturity Date
at December 31, 2003
(dollars in thousands)
Fair
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter  Total Value
Liabilities ’
Fixed rate:
Debt $188,922 $24,521 $ 15,227 $258,793 $613,800 $776,115 $1,877,378 $1,975,819
Average interest rate 7.42%  7.67% 8.00% 7.47% 9.96% 8.54% 8.73%
Floating rate:
Debt 3,411 3,568 141,101 - 15,500 650 164,230 164,230
© Average interestrate®  3.62%  3.62%  3.62% - 397%  3.12%  3.65%
Interest rate swaps (fixed to ﬂoating)(b)
Notional amount 175,000 - - 225,000 - - 400,000 5,468
Pay rate® 4.31% - - 5.29% - - 4.87%
Receive rate 7.38% - - 7.45% - - 7.42%
Total debt $192,333 $28,089 $156,328 $258,793 $629,300 $776,765 2,041,608
Average interest rate 4.57% 7.16% 4.05% 5.60% 9.71% 8.53% 7.82%
Net discount : (4,253)
Total debt $2,037,355
(a) The average floating rate of interest represents the implied forward rate in the yield curve at
December 31, 2003.
(b) The interest rate swaps decreased our interest expense by $7 million during 2003.
Expected Maturity Date
at December 31, 2002
(dollars in thousands)
Fair
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007  Thereafter Total Value
Liabilities
Fixed rate:
Debt $35,118 $189,228 $42,606 $14,217 $258,428 $1,343,507 $1,883,104 $1,725,934
Average interest rate 7.42% 7.42%  7.48% 8.04% 7.42% 8.89% 8.48%
Floating rate:
Debt ' - - - - - 650 650 650
Average interest rate® - - - - - 3.38% 3.38%
Interest rate swaps (fixed to ﬂoating)(b)
Notional amount - 175,000 - - 25,000 - 200,000 7,708
Pay rate® - 4.59% - - 4.95% - 4.64%
Receive rate - 7.38% - - 7.63% - 7.41%
Total debt $35,118 $189,228 $42,606 $14,217 $258,428 $1,344,157 1,883,754
7.42%  4.84% 7.48% 8.04% 7.22% 8.89% 8.18%
Net discount (6,620)
Total debt $1,877,134

(a) The average floating rate of interest represents the implied forward rates in the yield curve at
December 31, 2002.

(b) The interest rate swaps decreased our interest expense by $4 million during 2002.
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Swap contracts, such as described above, contain a credit risk, in that the counterparties may be unable
to fulfill the terms of the agreement. We minimize that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of our
counterparties, who are limited to major banks and financial institutions, and we do not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparties. The Standard & Poor’s credit ratings for the financial institutions that
are counterparties to the interest rate swap agreements range from A+ to AA-.

Inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of
inflation. Competitive pressures may, however, require us to reduce room rates in the near term and may limit
our ability to raise room rates in the future. We are also subject to the risk that inflation will cause increases in
hotel operating expenses disproportionately to revenues. During 2003, health and workers compensation
insurance and energy costs increased despite a decrease in revenues.

Seasonality

The lodging business is seasonal in nature. Generally, hotel revenues are greater in the second and
third calendar quarters than in the first and fourth calendar quarters, although this may not be true for hotels in
major tourist destinations. Revenues for hotels in tourist areas generally are substantially greater during tourist
season than other times of the year. Seasonal variations in revenue at our hotels can be expected to cause
quarterly fluctuations in our revenues. Quarterly earnings also may be adversely affected by events beyond our
control, such as extreme weather conditions, economic factors and other considerations affecting travel. To
the extent that cash flow from operations is insufficient during any quarter, due to temporary or seasonal
fluctuations in revenues, we may utilize cash on hand or borrowings to satisfy our obligations or make
distributions to our equity holders.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, the carrying
value of investments in hotels, litigation, and other contingencies. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
resuits of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the most significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

e  We are required by GAAP to record an impairment charge when we believe that an
investment in one or more of our hotels has been impaired, such that future undiscounted cash
flows would not recover the book basis, or net book value, of the investment. We test for
impairment when certain events occur, including one or more of the following: projected
cash flows are significantly less than recent historical cash flows; significant changes in legal
factors or actions by a regulator that could affect the value of our hotels; events that could
cause changes or uncertainty in travel patterns; and a current expectation that, more likely
than not, a hotel will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its
previousiy estimated useful life. In 2003, we identified 18 hotels, and in 2002 we identified
33 hotels, that we expect to sell by the end of 2005. The shorter probable holding periods
related to our decision to sell these hotels was the primary factor that led to impairment
charges on these hotels. As we sell these hotels, we may recognize additional losses or gains
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on sale. We revised our estimates of future cash flows for our hotel portfolio in the fourth
quarter of 2002, when it became apparent that the recovery of the travel industry would take
longer than we had originally expected. In the evaluation of impairment of our hotel assets,
and in establishing the impairment charge, we made many assumptions and estimates on a
hotel by hotel basis, which included the following:

Annual cash flow growth rates for revenues and expenses;

Holding periods;

Expected remaining useful lives of assets;

Estimates in fair values taking into consideration future cash flows, capitalization
rates, discount rates and comparable selling prices; and

o Future capital expenditures.

0O 0O 0O

Changes in these estimates, future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating
results of underlying hotels could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value
of the hotels that may not be reflected in the hotel’s current carrying value, thereby requiring
additional impairment charges in the future.

We own a 50% interest in various real estate joint ventures reported under the equity method
of accounting. In accordance with GAAP, we record an impairment of these equity method
investments when they experience an other than temporary decline in value. Changes in our
estimates or future adverse changes in the market conditions of the hotels owned by equity
method investments could result in additional declines in value that could be considered other
than temporary.

We make estimates with respect to contingent liabilities for losses covered by insurance in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standard 5, Accounting for Contingencies. We record
liabilities for self insured losses under our insurance programs when it becomes probable that
an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of our financial
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In 2002, we became self-
insured for the first $250,000, per occurrence, of our general liability claims with regard to 68
of our hotels. We review the adequacy of our reserves for our self-insured claims on a regular
basis. Our reserves are intended to cover the estimated ultimate uninsured liability for losses
with respect to reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting
period. These reserves represent estimates at a given accounting date, generally utilizing
projections based on claims, historical settlement of claims and estimates of future costs to
settle claims. Estimates are also required since there may be reporting lags between the
occurrence of the insured event and the time it is actually reported. Because establishment of
insurance reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates, currently
established reserves may not be sufficient. If our insurance reserves of $4 million, at
December 31, 2003, for general liability losses are insufficient, we will record an additional
expense in future periods. Property and catastrophic losses are event-driven losses and, as
such, until a loss occurs and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, no liability is
recorded. We had recorded no contingent liabilities with regard to property or catastrophic
losses at December 31, 2003,

SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended by
SFAS 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,”
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments. In accordance with
these pronouncements, all of our interest rate swap agreements outstanding at December 31,
2003, were designated as fair value hedges because they are hedging our exposure to the
changes in the fair value of our fixed rate debt. Our swaps meet the criteria necessary to
assurne no ineffectiveness of the hedge. These instruments are adjusted to our estimate of
their fair market value through the income statement, but are offset by the change in the
estimated fair value of our swapped fixed rate debt. We estimate the fair value of our interest
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rate swaps and fixed rate debt through the use of a third party valuation. We may use other
methods and assumptions to validate the fair market value. At December 31, 2003, our
estimate of the fair market value of the interest rate swaps was approximately $5 million and
represents the amount that we estimate we would currently receive upon termination of these
instruments, based on current market rates and reasonable assumptions about relevant future
market conditions.

¢ Our Taxable REIT Subsidiaries, or TRSs, have cumulative potential future tax deductions
totaling $297 million. The gross deferred income tax asset associated with these potential
future tax deductions was $105 million. We have recorded a valuation allowance equal to
100% of our $105 million deferred tax asset related to our TRSs, because of the uncertainty
of realizing the benefit of the deferred tax asset. SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effect of income taxes. The
objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or
refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements or tax
returns. In accordance with SFAS 109, we have considered future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a valuation
allowance. In the event we were to determine that we would be able to realize all or a portion
of our deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase
operating income in the period such determination was made.

Recent Accounting Announcements

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS 150, “Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This statement
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is
within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). Many of those instruments were previously
classified as equity. This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31,
2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. On
November 7, 2003, the FASB deferred for an indefinite period certain provisions of SFAS 150 relating to the
classification and measurement of mandatorily redeemable non-controlling interests. We do not believe that
we have any such interests. The implementation of the remaining effective provisions of SFAS 150 did not
impact our financial condition, results of operation or liquidity.

FASB Interpretation, or FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
ARB 51 was issued in January 2003. In December 2003, FASB issued FIN No. 46R which replaced FIN 46
and clarified Accounting Research Bulletin 51. This interpretation provides guidance on how to identify a
variable interest entity and determine when the assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests and results of
operations of a variable interest entity should be consolidated by the primary beneficiary. The primary
beneficiary is the enterprise that will absorb a majority of the variable interest entity's expected losses or
receive a majority of the expected residual returns as a result of holding variable interests. The recognition and
measurement provisions of this FIN apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003, and apply to the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003, for entities acquired
before February 1, 2003 (as deferred by FASB Staff Position No. FIN 46-6). This FIN requires the
consolidation of results of variable interest entities in which we are the primary beneficiary. As of
December 31, 2003, we did not own an interest in a variable interest entity that met the consolidation
requirements and, as such, the adoption of FIN No. 46 did not have a material effect on our financial condition,
results of operations, or liquidity. Interests in entities acquired or created after December 31, 2003 will be
evaluated based on FIN No. 46R criteria and consolidated, if required.
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Disclosure Regarding Forward Looking Statements

With the exception of historical information, the matters discussed in this financial information
supplement to our 2003 annual report to shareholders include “forward looking statements” within the
meaning of the federal securities laws., Forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance.
Numerous risks and uncertainties, and the occurrence of future events, may cause actual results to differ
materially from those currently anticipated. General economic conditions, including the timing and magnitude
of the currently expected recovery in the economy, the realization of anticipated job growth, the impact of U.S.
military involvement in the Middle East and elsewhere, future acts of terrorism, the impact on the travel
industry of increased security precautions, the availability of capital, the ability to effect sales of non-strategic
hotels at anticipated prices, and numerous other factors may affect future results, performance and
achievements. Certain of these risks and uncertainties are described in greater detail under “Cautionary
Factors That May Affect Future Results” in Item 1 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, or in cur other filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Although we believe our current expectations to be based
upon reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained or that actual
results will not differ materially.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated:

Ih our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. '

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 12, 2004
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003 and 2002

(in thousands)

ASSETS
2003 2002
Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation of $886,168 in 2003
and $782,166 I 2002.........ooiiieeeie ittt b e e e saeereera s $3,103,796 $3,473,452
Investment in unconsolidated ENITIES ..........civiviicciieie e 116,553 141,943
HOtels Reld £OT SALE .ot e e e e e aeaees 21,838 -
Cash and cash eqUIVAIETIS ......cocoveviirieiiiiii ettt et e 246,036 66,542
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,104 in 2003
And $1,413 002002, ..ottt e et ea e b ens 45,385 46,944
Deferred expenses, net of accumulated amortization of $16,080 in 2003
ANd $13,357 I 2002ttt s st b b b eab e naen 24,278 24,185
L0 111 T - L1 £ OO U OO U ST PUSTSURUUURURPR 33,007 27,297
TOtA] ASSELS . ..ureeitireeir ettt st e sttt et r et a e e eebe s eare e st r e eee $3,590,893 $3.780,363
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Debt, net of discount of $4,253 in 2003 and $3,231 in2002.......ccooveeieerirerreriereserein, $2,037,355 $1,877,134
DiStriBULIONS PAYADLE ...cceieiieiiriiet ettt ettt 5,504 14,792
Accrued expenses and other Habilities . .......o.oooviiieririeeeeee et 151,423 150,385
Minority interest in FelCor LP, 3,034 and 3,290 units issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.....ccovvmineninereisieraennes 50,142 72,639
Minority interest in other PartNerShiPS.......ccocviiererceriirirrir e e sre e 50,197 48.596
TOLAl HADIIIEIES ...ecevrieiceeeciie ettt ettt s et te et v e tteaneeenes 2.294.621 2,163,546
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 20,000 shares authorized:
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, 5,980 shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 .......ccoovoveeriemrvieree e 149,512 149,512
Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, 68 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002..........coovevvevvernrrieirr s, 169,395 169,395
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorized and 69,429 and
75,136 shares issued, including shares in treasury, at December 31,
2003and 2002, reSPECLIVELY ...ooveerereiieeee ettt 694 751
Additional paid-in CAPItal .........coccvivieiiiiiiiiieec e 2,095,356 2,204,530
Accumulated other comprehensive iINCOME .........cccoviiiiieiiiceeccce e 9,478 (99)
Accumulated defiCit......oocuviiiriiieies e e et (930,886) (593,834)
Less: Common stock in treasury, at cost, of 10,309 and 16,369 shares
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, reSpectively ........cccvvvererrreniccennincer e (197.277) (313,438)
Total stockholders” €QUILY......ccvecricririiiieriecenre ettt st 1,296,272 1.616,817
Total liabilities and stockholders” eqUity ......ccocoververerseerseciersee e $3,590,893 $3,780.363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

24




FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Hotel Operating reVeme ..........coveveieveeecreieneteiese e reasensneees $1,198,839 $1,240,539 $1,028,133
Percentage [€ase TeVENUE ........ccoeevivviireiinreeeeree e ceresne e - - 107,202
Retail space rental and other revenue .........c.cooceevrvenineenn 1,022 1,646 2,990
TOtal TEVENUES......oceiiviiieciiire ettt e 1,199.861 1,242.185 1,138,325
Expenses:
Hotel departmental €Xpenses ..........cccovveeeevieveiceneerenaeneninens 436,088 432,156 340,958
Other property Operating CostS.......oveerurrrmrererrerrerererrersereees 353,293 339,811 273,220
Management and franchise fees.......ccooevvieininininciine 63,113 63,350 55,281
Taxes, insurance and 1ease eXpense .......cocveervereeencrenrennee 125,328 127,279 136,057
Abandoned Projects .......oivevviiiiiieiieiee e - 1,663 837
Lease termination COSLS.....cuvrvrrviireerreeesirirneeeeresesorreesneeneess - - 36,604
Merger termination COSES .....c.erirrirerrieririrenreneeniererae e - - 19,919
COrpOrate EXPENSES ....o.vevieeriiereerieieereeeee e eebeibereneeneaearenes 14,266 13,756 12,678
DEPreciation..cc.ceuerieririirierieieitcreee ettt sea e 134,883 143,978 149,217
Total Operating eXPENSES........ueeevevrrieeeriuerierreneeresceseeseseeses 1,126,971 1,121,993 1,024,771
OPETating INCOINE ......eovvrrrerrereereerrerriereensesveriesiessesnsenssnecassasnnenes 72,890 120,192 113,554
Interest expense, net:
Recurring filancing .........o.cceevvreeeninnncecnerese s (165,314) (162,786) (156,907)
Merger related financing..........ccocovveeieiieiere s - - (5,486)
Charge-off of deferred financing Costs ......c.occcevvvvvvreviciniinccnns (2,834) (3,222) (1,270)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt.........ccooeeviiivevninnne 331 - -
Swap termination EXPENSE .......corveveerirerierreerteireresee e seeseraenees - - (7,049)
IMPaIrmMeEnt JOSS.....ceeveieiieiicreiie ettt s (224.583) _{70,168) (6,273)
Loss before equity in income of unconsolidated entities,
minority interests and gain on sale of assets .......ccccevrivrreenne (319,510) (115,984) (63,431)
Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated entities............ 2,370 (10,127) 7,346
Gain on sale 0f SSELS......vevieiiiviriirie e e 284 5,861 2,935
MINOTItY INEEIESIS ..e.veieveriiercenierirei e eireceriee e see e rne e 19.908 8.861 8.241
Loss from continuing operations .........c.cecvevveerivnrierenerssneeeens (296,948) (111,389) (44,909)
Discontinued OPerations.........coooeevvrererieerrereirerererenensennns (13,196) (67.192) 5,633
NEL LOSS 1evieiririieertiire ettt ettt res et ernsaeeeese s (310,144) (178,581) (39,276)
Preferred dividends.....c....ocoovevvnecerivieneicerece e (26.908) (26.292) (24.600)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders.........ccccocervineens $ (337,052) $(204.873) $ (63.876)
Loss per common share data: .
Basic and diluted:
Net loss from continuing operations ..............eoevecererrennenen $ (552) § Q.54 3 (132
NEELOSS 1ottt ettt sese s ese s $ (575 §  (3.9%) § (.21
Weighted average common shares outstanding .................. 58,657 54,173 52,622
Cash dividends declared on common stock ......coccveevrcreeccnenns $ - $ 0.60 b 1.70

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(in thousands)

2003 2002 2001
INEE LOSS wuvveneeeeiteecreeeeie et st et eve ettt eee s bttt e st see e b sa et nenee $(310,144)  $(178,581) $(39,276)
Cumulative transition adjustment from interest rate Swaps .................. - - 248
Unrealized holding losses from interest rate SWaps ........c..cccovveenvene. - - (7,297)
Losses realized on interest rate swap terminations ..........ceeeveeveeveenennen - - 7,049
Foreign currency translation adjustment..........c.coccoveveeeeeenecnenencenennes 9,577 277 (376)
Comprehensive 1088 .......covieviniiricicirerer e e e saessereereseesans $(300.567) $(178,304) $(39.652)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Common Stock Accumulated
Number Additional Other Total
Preferred of Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Stockholders'
. Stock Shares Amount  Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Stock Equity
Balance at December 31, 2000 $293265 69415 § 694 $2,064,909 $(201,598) $(323,165) $1,834,105
Foreign exchange translation $ (376) (376)
Issuance of treasury shares 1,920 7,906 9,826
Issuance of stock awards 3 (4,373) 4,373
Amortization of stock awards 2,093 2,093
Repurchase of common shares (4,127) 4,127
Allocation to minority interest (5,091) (5,091)
Dividends declared:
$1.70 per common share (89,917) (89,917)
$1.95 per Series A preferred share (11,662) (11,662)
$2.25 per Series B depositary preferred share (12,938) (12,938)
Net loss (39,276) (39,276)
Other, net (10) 567 557
Balance at December 31, 2001 293,265 69,418 694 2,059,448 (376) (355,391) (314,446) 1,683,194
Foreign exchange translation 277 277
Issuance of Series B preferred stock 25,645 (1,836) 23,809
Issuance of stock awards 5 (1,121) 1,121
Amortization of stock awards 2,088 2,088
Conversion of preferred stock 3) 3
Conversion of operating partnership
units into common shares 5,713 57 73,414 73,471
Allocation from minority interest 72,534 72,534
Dividends declared:
$0.60 per common share (33,570) (33,570)
$1.95 per Series A preferred share (11,662) (11,662)
$2.25 per Series B depositary preferred share (14,630) (14,630)
Net loss (178,581) (178,581)
Other, net (113) (113)
Balance at December 31, 2002 318,907 75,136 751 2,204,530 (99) (593,834) (313,438) 1,616,817
Foreign exchange translation 9,577 9,577
Issuance of stock awards 6 (1,873) 1,873
Amortization of stock awards 2,210 2,210
Common stock exchange for treasury stock (5,713) 57 (109,295) 109,352
Conversion of operating partnership ‘
units into common shares (2,495) 4,936 2,441
Allocation from minority interest 2,279 2,279
Dividends declared:
$1.95 per Series A preferred share (11,662) (11,662)
$2.25 per Series B depositary preferred share (15,246) (15,246)
Net loss (310,144) (310,144)
Balance at December 31, 2003 $318,907 69,429 § 694 $2,095356 § 9,478  $(930,886) $(197,277) $1,296,272

(in thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
(in thousands)

2003 2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEELOSS cenvvrieireecrerier ettt e st ee et s et b ke en et e n e ene $(310,144) $(178,581) $(39,276)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by '
operating activities:

DEPreCiation .....c..euveviiireiriee ittt ettt 140,225 152,817 157,692
Gain on $ale 0f @SSELS ....cvcoiveririr et e (2,660) (6,061) (3,417)
Amortization of deferred financing fees ......c..cccvvevevvivvivencnciinns 4,996 5,297 5,292
Accretion (amortization) of debt......c.coivvveviriivineeeen e 590 407 17
Allowance for doubtful accounts ...........cccecvvvriveceeiicnnniencne e, 309 C)] 220
Amortization of unearned officers' and directors' compensation ...... 2,210 2,088 2,093
Equity in loss (income) from unconsolidated entities...........c..oov.n.e. (2,370) 10,127 (7,346)
Charge-off of deferred financing Costs .........cc.covvvrveieienrnrenerenens 2,834 3,222 1,270
Gain on early extinguishment of debt ........cccooviiiiiiiiiniii (1,611) - -
Lease termination COSES ......covviiiiriecieiriceeiereireeereesteeviseere e e eree e - - 36,604
Impairment loss on investment in hotels and hotels held for sale..... 245,509 144,085 7,000
MINOTILY IEETESES ..o.vveerievcereeiee et eceie sttt aiesee e st neare e et ennrnreens (20,588) (12,622) (7,283)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
AcCCOUNES TECEIVADIE ....o.veviiieriiiriecrccrie et crer et 2,597 4,524 6,847
OhET @SSELS ..vvveeureieeiieierierereetere et e sie et eve et en s rrar et e e e nenrasane (7,134) (6,253) 1,596
Accrued expenses and other liabilities........ccocooeerveieeieneenc e (6,978) (11,750 (16,543
Net cash flow provided by operating activities..........ccovouee.eee. 47.785 107,291 144,766
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition Of NOtelS ..........ccvviririiciiiic e - (49,778) -
Improvements and additions to hotels.........oeoveivivericnnncie e (64,045) (60,793) (65,446)
Cash from acquisition of lessees and consolidation of venture................... 2,705 - 29,731
Proceeds from sale OF @SSEIS.......covvvriieiiiiiree ettt et an 104,131 29,001 66,330
Cash distributions from unconsolidated entities ..........ccocccviviverrevecnrrennnnn 8,848 11,310 8,132
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities ........ 51,639 (70,260) 38,747
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from DOITOWINES «.....ccecveeriiiiiiierrieiteeeereeeresiecreae s evesnessesvesveareens 321,119 - 1,122,172
Net proceeds from sale of preferred Stock ........ccoccevrivriinniniinc i - 23,809 -
Repayment Of BOTTOWINGS .....c.ovvivieeiiriiniiieree ettt (198,426) (62,460) (1,020,290)
Payment of debt iSSUE COSLS ....icvireriininiieiiiiieiere it r et sae e (6,656) (1,455) (13,801)
Purchase of treasury stock, stock grants, and assumed stock options......... - (113) 4,127)
Proceeds from exercise of Stock OPtionS .........ovevveceeieeneicinirreesess e - - 678
Distributions paid to other partnerships’ minority interests............c..coceeun. - (2,058) (4,799)
Distributions paid to FelCor LP limited partners..........cvceeeveeveererenrierenrenns (492) (3,696) (20,211)
Distributions paid to preferred stockholders.........cccoovveverenivieneniisrenne (26,908) (25,907) (24,600)
Distributions paid to common stockholders..........ccoocveineinicicnnir s (8,796) (27,378) _(115.883)
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities......... 79.841 (99.258) (80,861)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash...........cccoereeiiineninncncnen 229 27 30
Net change in cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .......cccoivverveiiiiirnenc e 179,494 (62,200) 102,682
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periods........ccccovveenivvrcrnrenieirnne 66.542 128,742 26,060
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periods.........ccoceevivveciecieiinicrrree e $ 246,036 § 66,542 $ 128,742
Supplemental cash flow information —
INterest Paid.......cvovicieoineiie ettt e § 160,407 $159.401 $ 164,261

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Organization

In 1994, FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated, or FelCor, went public as a real estate investment trust, or
REIT, with six hotels and a market capitalization of $120 million. We are now the nation’s second largest
lodging REIT and the largest owner of full service, all-suite hotels in the nation. At December 31, 2003, our
hotel portfolio included 71 full service, all-suite hotels, and we are the owner of the (greatest number of Embassy
Suites Hotels®, Crowne Plaza®, Holiday Inn® and independently-owned Doubletree™ hotels in North America.
Our portfolio also includes 75 hotels in the upscale and full service segments.

FelCor is the sole general partner of, and the owner of an approximately 95% limited partnership interest
in, FelCor Lodging Limited Partnership, or FelCor LP. All of our operations are conducted solely through
FelCor LP, or its subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2003, we had ownership interests in 166 hotels. We owned a 100% real estate interest
in 129 hotels, a 90% or greater interest in entities owning seven hotels, a 60% interest in an entity owning two
hotels, a 51% interest in an entity owning eight hotels and 50% interests in unconsolidated entities that own 20
hotels. As a result of our ownership interests in the operating lessees of 161 of these hotels, we reflect their
operating revenues and expenses in our consolidated statements of operations. The operations of 159 of the 161
hotels were included in continuing operations at December 31, 2003. The remaining two hotels were held for
sale as of December 31, 2003, and where their operations are included in discontinued operations. The operating
revenues and expenses of the remaining five hotels are unconsolidated.

At December 31, 2003, we had an aggregate of 62,154,264 shares of FelCor common stock and units of
FelCor LP limited partnership interest outstanding.

The following table reflects the distribution, by brand, of the 159 hotels included in our consolidated
hotel continuing operations at December 31, 2003:

Brand Hotels Rooms
Embassy Suites HOEIS ....ccoeevremieeeineicieei et 56 14,279
Doubletree and Doubletree GUest SUIES™..........vvevereeveerseeeeerereeesseeesreessons 10 2,206
Holiday Inn - branded............coevevimiicvicirinecct e e 48 15,178
Crowne Plaza and Crowne Plaza Suites® .........ooveveereeeoeeoereeeeosseeeeereereeeennn 15 5,108
Sheraton® and Sheraton Suites®.............. ettt ettt 10 3,269
OtheT DIANAS 1o vttt e r et e st e e aeaasetaestseereas 20 4,252
TOtAl HOLEIS ..o eereiiesiee sttt ettt e e 159

The hotels shown in the above table are located in the United States (33 states) and Canada (two hotels),
with concentrations in Texas (38 hotels), California (19 hotels), Florida (16 hotels) and Georgia (14 hotels).
Approximately 55% of our hotel room revenues were generated from hotels in these four states during 2003.

At December 31, 2003, of the 159 consolidated hotels included in continuing operations, (i) subsidiaries
of IHG managed 70, (ii) subsidiaries of Hilton managed 66, (iii) subsidiaries of Starwood managed 11, (iv)
subsidiaries of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, or Interstate, managed 10, and (v) two independent management
companies managed one each.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period financial information to conform to the current
period’s presentation with no effect to previously reported net loss or stockholders’ equity.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

2. . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

- Principles of Consolidation — Our accompanying consolidated financial statements include the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of all majority-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances
are eliminated in consolidation. Investments in unconsolidated entities (50 percent owned ventures) are
accounted for by the equity method.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. '

Investment in Hotels — Our hotels are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives of 40 years for buildings, 15 to 20 years for improvements and three to seven years
for furniture, fixtures, and equipment. :

We periodically review the carrying value of each of our hotels to determine if circumstances exist
indicating an impairment in the carrying value of the investment in the hotel or that depreciation periods should
be modified. If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, we prepare a projection of the
undiscounted future cash flows over the shorter of the hotel’s estimated useful life or the expected hold period,
without interest charges, of the specific hotel and determine if the investment in such hotel is recoverable based
on the undiscounted future cash flows. If impairment is indicated, we make an adjustment to reduce carrying
value of the hotel to its then fair value. We use recent operating results and current market information to arrive
at our estimates of fair value.

Maintenance and repairs are expensed and major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Upon the
sale or disposition of a fixed asset, the asset and related accumulated depreciation are removed from our accounts
and the related gain or loss is included in operations.

Acquisition of Hotels — Our hotel acquisitions consist almost exclusively of land, building, furniture,
fixtures and equipment, and inventory. We allocate the purchase price among these asset classes based upon
their respective values determined in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS,
141, “Business Combinations.” When we acquire properties, we acquire them for use. The only intangible
assets typically acquired consist of miscellaneous operating agreements all of which are of short duration and at
market rates. We do not generally acquire any significant in-place leases or other intangible assets (e.g.,
management agreements, franchise agreements or trademarks) when we acquire hotels. In conjunction with the
acquisition of a hotel, we typically negotiate new franchise and management agreements with the selected brand
owner and manager.

Investment in Unconsolidated Entities — We own a 50% interest in various real estate ventures in which
the partners or members jointly make all material decisions concerning the business affairs and operations.
Additionally, we also own a preferred equity interest in one of these real estate ventures. Because we do not
control these entities, we carry our investment in unconsolidated entities at cost, plus our equity in net earnings
or losses, less distributions received since the date of acquisition and any adjustment for impairment. Our equity
in net earnings or losses is adjusted for the straight-line depreciation, over the lower of 40 years or the remaining
life of the venture, of the difference between our cost and our proportionate share of the underlying net assets at
the date of acquisition. Qur investment in unconsolidated entities is periodically reviewed for other than
temporary declines in market value. Any decline that is not expected to recover in the next 12 months is
considered other than temporary and an impairment is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the
investment. Estimated fair values are based on our projections of cash flows and market capitalization rates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Hotels Held for Sale — We consider each individual hotel to be an identifiable component of our
business. In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
we do not consider hotels as “held for sale” until it is probable that the sale will be completed within one year.
Once a hotel is “held for sale” the operations related to the hotel are included in discontinued operations. We
consider a hotel as “held for sale” once we have executed a contract for sale, allowed the buyer to complete their
due diligence review, and received a substantial non-refundable deposit. Until a buyer has completed its due
diligence review of the asset, necessary approvals have been received and substantive conditions to the buyer’s
obligation to perform have been satisfied, we do not consider a sale to be probable.

We do not depreciate hotel assets so long as they are classified as “held for sale.” Upon designation of a
hotel as being “held for sale,” and quarterly thereafter, we review the carrying value of the hotel and, as
appropriate, adjust its carrying value to the lesser of depreciated cost and fair value, less cost to sell, in
accordance with SFAS 144. Any such adjustment in the carrying value of a hotel classified as “held for sale” is
reflected in discontinued operations. We include in discontinued operations the operating results of those hotels
that are classified as “held for sale” or that have been sold.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Included in cash and cash equivalents is $14.2 million
and $16.4 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, which is held in escrow under certain of our debt agreements.

We place cash deposits at major banks. Our bank account balances may exceed the Federal Depository
Insurance Limits of $100,000; however, management believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Deferred Expenses — Deferred expenses, consisting primarily of loan costs, are recorded at cost.
Amortization is computed using a method that approximates the interest method over the maturity of the related
debt.

Other Assets — Other assets consist primarily of hotel operating inventories, prepaid expenses and
deposits.

Revenue Recognition — Beginning in January 2001, in conjunction with the effectiveness of the REIT
Modernization Act, or RMA, we started acquiring our lessees and leases and began to earn room revenue, food
and beverage revenue and other revenue through the operations of our hotels.

As a result of the acquisition of our lessees, approximately 99.9% of our revenue is comprised of hotel
operating revenues, such as room revenue, food and beverage revenue, and revenue from other hotel operating
departments (such as telephone, parking and business centers). These revenues are recorded net of any sales or
occupancy taxes collected from our guests. All rebates or discounts are recorded, when allowed, as a reduction
in revenue, and there are no material contingent obligations with respect to rebates or discounts offered by us.
All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, as earned. Appropriate allowances are made for doubtful accounts
and are recorded as a bad debt expense. The remaining 0.1% of our revenue is from retail space rental revenue
and other sources. ‘

We do not have any time-share arrangements and do not sponsor any frequent guest programs for which
we would have any contingent liability. We participate in frequent guest programs sponsored by the brand
owners of our hotels and we expense the charges associated with those programs (typically consisting of a
percentage of the total guest charges incurred by a participating guest), as incurred. When a guest redeems
accumulated frequent guest points at one of our hotels, the hotel bills the sponsor for the services provided in
redemption of such points and records revenue in the amount of the charges billed to the sponsor. Associated
with the frequent guest programs, we have no loss contingencies or ongoing obligation beyond what is paid to the
brand owner at the time of the guest’s stay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Foreign Currency Translation — Results of operations for our Canadian hotels are maintained in
Canadian dollars and translated using the average exchange rates during the period. Assets and liabilities are
translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Resulting translation
adjustments are reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Capitalized Cost — We capitalize interest and certain other costs, such as property taxes, land leases, and
property insurance relating to hotels undergoing major renovations and redevelopments. Such costs capitalized in
2003, 2002, and 2001, were approximately $2.0 million, $1.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share — We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income
(loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. We
compute diluted earnings per share by dividing net income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares and equivalents outstanding, Common stock equivalents represent shares
issuable upon exercise of stock options and unvested officers’ restricted stock grants.

For all years presented, our Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock, or Series A preferred stock, if converted to
common shares, would be antidilutive; accordingly we do not assume conversion of the Series A preferred stock in
the computation of diluted earnings per share. For all years presented, stock options granted are not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the average market price of the common stock during each
respective year exceeded the exercise price of the options.

Stock Compensation — We apply Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for our stock based compensation plans for stock based compensation issued prior to
January 1, 2003. In 1995, SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” was issued, which, if fully
adopted by us, would have changed the methods we apply in recognizing the cost of the plans. As permitted under
the transition provisions of SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” we
began recognizing compensation expense in accordance with SFAS 123 for all new awards issued after December
31, 2002. Had the compensation cost for our stock-based compensation plans been determined in accordance with
SFAS 123 prior to January 1, 2003, our net income or loss and net income or loss per common share for the periods
presented would approximate the pro forma amounts below (in thousands, except per share data):

2003 2002 2001
Loss from continuing operations, as reported .........c.cvvcvrvvereecrrenrrnneas $(296,948)  $(111,389)  $(44,909)
Add stock based compensation included in the net loss, as reported.... 2,210 2,088 2,093
Less stock based compensation expense that would have been
included in the determination of net loss if the fair value method
had been applied to all awards...........ccccoeevioiiie e {2,355) (2,617) (2,704)
Loss from continuing operations, pro forma..........cccocevvvevvvicereevnnnn. $(297,093)  $(111,918) $(45,520)
Basic and diluted net loss from continuing operations per common
share: ,
ASTEPOITEA. ...eiiiiiiieiiiiie it ettt $ (552 $ Q2549 § (132
Pro forma .....ocoeieiie e e $ (552 $ @35 § (133

The effects of applying SFAS 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future amounts.

Derivatives — We record derivatives in accordance with SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities.” SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments. Specifically, SFAS 133 requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities on the balance sheet and to measure those instruments at fair value. Additionally, the fair value
adjustments will affect either stockholders’ equity or net income, depending on whether the derivative instrument
qualifies as a hedge for accounting purposes and the nature of the hedging activity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Segment Information — SFAS 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” requires the disclosure of selected information about operating segments. Based on the guidance
provided in the standard, we have determined that our business is conducted in one operating segment.

Distributions and Dividends — We and FelCor LP have historically paid regular quarterly distributions
on our common stock and partnership units. Additionally, we have paid regular quarterly dividends on our
preferred stock in accordance with our preferred stock dividend requirements. In 2003, we announced that, as
the result of declines in our portfolio’s average daily rate, which was attributed to the uncertain geopolitical
environment and soft business climate, along with the risk of further margin deterioration, we suspended
payment of regular common dividends. Our ability to make distributions is dependent on our receipt of quarterly
distributions from FelCor LP, and FelCor LP’s ability to make distributions is dependent upon the results of
operations of our hotels.

Minority Interests — Minority interests in FelCor LP and other consolidated subsidiaries represent the
proportionate share of the equity in FelCor LP and other consolidated subsidiaries not owned by us. We allocate
income and loss to minority interest based on the weighted average percentage ownership throughout the year.

Income Taxes — We have elected to be treated as a REIT under Sections 856 to 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code. We generally lease our hotels to wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs, that are
subject to federal and state income taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 109. Under SFAS 109, we account for income taxes using the asset and liability method under which
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

3. Acquisition of Hotel Leases

As a result of the passage of the RMA, effective January 1, 2001, we acquired 100% of DJONT
Operations, L.L.C., or DJONT, which owned leases on 85 of our hotels, and contributed it to a TRS. In
consideration, FelCor LP issued 416,667 of its units, valued at approximately $10 million, and we assumed
DJONT’s accumulated stockholders’ deficit of $25 million, which we expensed as lease termination cost in
2001. On January 1, 2001, we acquired from IHG the leases covering 11 hotels, terminated one additional lease
in connection with the sale of the related hotel and terminated the 12 related management agreements in
exchange for 413,585 shares of our common stock valued at approximately $10 million. Of this $10 million in
consideration, we expensed approximately $2 million as lease termination costs in 2001 and $8 million in 2000.

We purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities in connection with the acquisition of the
leases on these 96 hotels. The fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities at January 1, 2001, are as follows
(in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents..........cococeeiineiniicnninecn e - $25,300
Accounts receivable ... 30,214
OFher SSELS .oviviiieeieieierie e ere ettt st ste e sae et s s 17,318
Total assets aCqUITed .......cceceevrereivererineni e 72,832
Accounts payable ... 18,656
Due to FelCor Lodging Trust......ccccocvoviveiiiienieieireeve e 30,687
Accrued expenses and other liabilities.............cccoeevieeieenene 40,372
Total liabilities asSUMEd......cccoorvenecriiii e 89,715
Liabilities assumed in excess of assets acquired................... 16,883
Value of common stock and FelCor LP units issued ............ 19,721

Lease termination COStS ......cveeeirieiirreirieeieenrerenree e reene $36.604
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)
3. Acquisition of Hotel Leases — (continued)

We acquired 88 hotel leases held by IHG on July 1, 2001. In consideration for the acquisition of these
leases, we entered into long-term management agreements with IHG with regard to these hotels and issued to
THG 100 shares of our common stock. The management fees payable to IHG include compensation to IHG for
both management services and the acquisition of the 88 leases and, as such, are higher than we pay to other

managers for comparable services. Management fees payable under these management contracts are expensed as
incurred. ‘

We purchased certain assets and acquired certain liabilities with the acquisition of the 88 hotel leases.
The fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities at July 1, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents ............ccccooeuiereiriveecreeeeennnns $ 4,431
Accounts receivable.......ooociviiiiiiiic e 30,964
O1RET @SSEES...ciiiiiieeee ettt ee e s r e e e see s s eans 6.941

Total assets acquired..........ccoocvevveirevecerinnieecenenennas $42.336
Accounts payable........coeeevciviiiinieeneee s $ 7,660
Accrued expenses and liabilities...........ccccoeeeeeereerveeennenne 34,676

Total liabilities assumed ..........ccocvvevevnereeiiiinereennnne. $42.336

4, Investment in Hotels

Investment in hotels at December 31, 2003 and 2002, consists of the following (in thousands):

2003 2002
Building and improvements..........ccocevecvrerenenennn $3,142,853 $3,399,151
Furniture, fixtures and equipment............ccccovverenen. 512,927 492,750
Land....coooioiiee e e 333,060 353,972
Construction In PrOGIESS ......ccveeeerveriereerreereecrarurrrarenns 1,124 9.745
3,989,964 4,255,618
Accumulated depreciation ..........cccoceveccnencrnicerennann, (886.168) (782.166)

3,103,796 3,473,452

In 2003, we sold parking garages adjacent to our hotels in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and San
Francisco, California, for net sales proceeds of $12.1 million and realized aggregate gains of $0.3 million.
Discussions of 2003 hotel dispositions are included in our Discontinued Operations footnote.

In August 2002, we contributed five of the hotels held for sale to a joint venture in which we retained a
50% equity interest and an independent hotel company holds the other 50% equity interest. We received net
cash proceeds of approximately $4.4 million and retained a $1.4 million common equity interest and a
$6.3 million preferred equity interest paying 8.19%. Also in August 2002, we sold our 71-room Holiday Inn
Express hotel in Colby, Kansas, receiving net proceeds of $1.7 million. We recorded no gain or loss in
connection with these transactions as the proceeds received approximated the book value of the properties.

In July 2002, we acquired the 208-suite SouthPark Suite Hotel in Charlotte, North Carolina for
$14.5 million. We converted this hotel to a Doubletree Guest Suites hotel in October 2002. In July 2002, we
acquired the 385-room Wyndham® resort and a lease on the Arcadian Shores Golf Club in Myrtle Beach, South
Carolina. We converted this hotel to a Hilton hotel in April 2003, following a renovation. We purchased this
hotel, adjacent land and a leasehold interest in the golf course for $35.3 million. We entered into a 15-year

management agreement with Hilton for the hotel concurrent with the July 2002 closings. We utilized excess
cash on hand to acquire these hotels.
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4, Investment in Hotels — (continued)

In June 2002, we sold retail space associated with the Allerton Hotel located in Chicago, Tllinois, for net
proceeds of $16.7 million and recorded a net gain of approximately $5.1 million. In addition, in 2002 we also
recognized a $0.2 million gain related to the condemnation of land adjacent to one of our hotels.

In April 2002, we sold our 183-room Doubletree Guest Suites hotel in Boca Raton, Florida, and received
net sales proceeds of $6.5 million. We recorded a net gain of approximately $0.8 million on the sale.

In June 2001, we sold the 140-room Hampton Inn located in Marietta, Georgia, for a net sales price of
$7 million. In September 2001, we sold the 119-room Hampton Inn located in Jackson, Mississippi, for a net
sales price of $4 million. In November 2001, we sold the 129-room Doubletree Hotel located in Tampa, Florida
for a net sales price of $3 million. We recorded no gain or loss from these sales.

In March 2001, we contributed eight of the hotels held for sale to a joint venture in which we retained a
50% equity interest and an affiliate of Interstate holds the other 50% equity interest. We contributed hotels with a
book value of approximately $77 million, and received net cash proceeds of approximately $52 million. We
retained an $8 million common equity interest and a $16.6 million preferred equity interest paying 8.85%. No
gain or loss was recorded in connection with this transaction. We also made a loan of approximately $4 million to
Interstate, secured by its interest in the venture. Effective June 1, 2003, we made a $0.2 million capital
contribution to our joint venture with Interstate, which increased our ownership in that venture to more than
50 percent. As a result, we began consolidating this venture and its eight hotels. The consolidation of this venture
increased our net investment in hotels by $73 million, increased our debt by $51 million and reduced our
investment in unconsolidated entities by $19 million.

In 2001, we received $3.9 million from the condemnation of three parcels of land and recorded a gain of
$2.9 million. In 2001, we sold an undeveloped parcel of land adjacent to one of our hotels in Atlanta and
recorded a gain of $0.5 million.

We invested approximately $64 million and $61 million in additions and improvements to hotels during
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

s. Impairment Charge

Our hotels are comprised of operations and cash flows that can clearly be distinguished, operationally
and for financial reporting purposes, from the remainder of our operations. Accordingly, we consider our hotels
to be components as defined by SFAS 144 for purposes of determining impairment charges and reporting
discontinued operations.

In 2003, we recorded impairment charges, under the provisions of SFAS 144, of $245.5 million
($224.6 million of which is included in continuing operations and the remainder is included in discontinued
operations). The 2003 charges were primarily related to our third quarter decision to sell 11 IHG-managed
hotels, following an amendment to the management agreements on these hotels, and our fourth quarter decision
to sell an additional seven hotels. We also recorded additional impairment charges on certain of the non-
strategic hotels identified for sale in 2002; these were primarily triggered by decreases in fair value estimates for
these hotels.

In 2002, we recorded impairment charges of $144.1 million under the provisions of SFAS 144
($70.2 million of which is included in continuing operations and the remainder is included in discontinued
operations). This impairment charge related principally to our fourth quarter 2002 decision to sell 33 non-
strategic hotels.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

5. Impairment Charge — (continued)

In 2002, we also recorded an impairment charge of $13.4 million related to an other than temporary
decline in value of certain equity method investments under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Common Stocks,” or APB 18. In accordance with APB 18,
other than temporary declines in fair value of our investment in unconsolidated entities result in reductions in the
carrying value of these investments. We consider a decline in value in our equity method investments that is not
estimated to recover within 12 months to be other than temporary.

In 2001, we recorded impairment charges of $7 million in conjunction with the designation of certain
hotels as held for sale under the applicable provisions of SFAS 121.

The non-strategic hotels held for investment, which are included in our continuing operations, were
tested for impairment as required by SFAS 144 using the undiscounted cash flows for the shorter of the
estimated remaining holding periods or the useful life of the hotels. Those hotels that failed the impairment test
described in SFAS 144 were written down to their current estimated fair value, before any selling expenses.
These hotels continue to be depreciated over their remaining useful lives.

We may be subject to additional impairment charges in the event that operating results of individual

hotels are materially different from our forecasts, the economy and lodging industry remains weak, or if we
shorten our contemplated holding period for certain of our hotels.

6. Discontinued Operations

Condensed combined financial information for the 18 hotels included in discontinued operations is as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Hotel Operating rEVENUE ... ...vvovvrrerereereirenseeeressereaesaeseasessesessessenns $ 58,206 $ 75,774 $54,711
Percentage 18aSe TEVEMUE ......ocovcveveeiviviririiercieieieaes e, - - 7,935
OPperating EXPENSES ...c.eevvvveririreie et rene st e 54314 71,502 54.374
OPErating INCOME. . .evveveereriereirierrerrerreeenitesre e sraneserserssnesssseseneas 3,892 4,272 8,272
Direct INterest COSIS, MEL...ccviiriririrreiricre oot see e (498) (1,508) (1,436)
Impairment 10SS......ccccoevverireeerenecrcerenn et er et ev s (20,926) (73,917) (727)
Gain on the early extinguishment of debt ............cccoooveiiii, 1,280 - -
Gain on diSPOSITION ...eviviverriieee et s see et ebeesstssese et svenas 2,376 200 482
MINOTILY TNEETESE .ovriveviiiecienieseerec sttt v et ase b essasasveseeeene 680 3,761 (958)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations..........cccceevvereerenneeas $(13,196) $(67,192) $ 5,633

In October 2003, we sold four Holiday Inn-branded hotels in Ontario, Canada for net proceeds of
$30.6 million; five hotels (Embassy Suites Hotels in Syracuse, New Y ork, Phoenix, and Flagstaff, Arizona, and
Doubletree Guest Suites hotels in Columbus, and Dayton, Ohio), for net proceeds of $48.2 million; a Crowne
Plaza hotel in Greenville, South Carolina, for net proceeds of $4.2 million; and a Holiday Inn in Texarkana,
Arkansas, for net proceeds of $2.5 million. From the sale of these hotels, we realized a net gain of $3.0 million
on disposition, which included a $3.5 million gain from foreign currency translation previously recorded in other
comprehensive income.

In August 2003, we relinquished title to two low rise Harvey hotels in Dallas through a foreclosure
action. This resulted in a gain of $0.3 million from the extinguishment of $9.7 million of debt (net of escrow
balances).
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6. Discontinued Operations — (continued)

In July 2003, we sold our Doubletree Guest Suites in Nashville, Tennessee, for net proceeds of
approximately $3.0 million. In May 2003, we sold two non-strategic hotels, the 138-room Hampton Inn in
Moline, Illinois, and the 132-room Hampton Inn in Davenport, Iowa, for aggregate net sales proceeds of
$£6.4 million. From the sale of these hotels we realized a net loss on disposition of $0.9 million.

The results of operations of these 16 hotels and the two hotels designated as held for sale at
December 31, 2003, are presented in discontinued operations for the periods presented.

7. Investment in Unconsolidated Entities

We owned 50% interests in joint venture entities that owned 20 hotels at December 31, 2003, and 29
hotels at December 31, 2002. We also owned a 50% interest in entities that own an undeveloped parcel of land,
provide condominium management services, develop condominiums in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina, and lease
four hotels. We account for our investments in these unconsolidated entities under the equity method. We do
not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that are not consolidated in our financial statements.

Summarized unaudited combined financial information for 100% of these unconsolidated entities is as
follows (in thousands):

December 31,
003 2002

Balance sheet information:
Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation...... $326,835 $383,249

TOtal ASSELS ...eoivieiectreciietee et ettt $366,046 $408,979
DDt it $275,209 $278,978
Total HabilitieS.....cocvveiiiieice et $276,773 $279,887
EQUILY covovieiiieteeiecer et ettt ettt $ 89,273 $129,854

Debt of our unconsolidated entities at December 31, 2003, consisted of $213.6 million of non-recourse
mortgage debt, of which our pro rata share is $106.8 million.

Debt of our unconsolidated entities at December 31, 2003, also included $30.9 million of mortgage debt
guaranteed by us and $30.7 million of mortgage debt guaranteed by Hilton, one of our joint venture partners. The
debt guaranteed by us consisted primarily of 50% of a loan related to the construction of a residential
condominium project in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The loan commitment is for $97.6 million of which
approximately $61.4 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2003. Our guarantee reduces from 50% to 25%
of the outstanding balance when the condominium project is completed and receives a certificate of occupancy,
which we expect to occur in late 2004.

Our guarantee is a payment guarantee and will trigger in the event that the joint venture fails to pay
interest or principal due under the debt agreement. The loan matures in August 2005 and bears interest at LIBOR
plus 200 basis points. As of December 31, 2003, we have not established any liability related to our guarantees of
debt because it is not probable that we will be required to perform under these guarantees.
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7. Investment in Unconsolidated Entities — (continued)

Summarized unaudited combined statement of operations information for 100% of our unconsolidated
entities is as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

TOtal FEVEIUES .....ocveeeceeeetc et $75,456 $84,926 $82,776
NELIICOIME ..ot ceee sttt et eb e entes e asseestesresneensenen $ 0,438 $ 8,818 $17,498
Net income attributable to FelCor.......ccccoovvivveveveieiennnnn, $ 4,459 $ 4,409 $ 8,749
Preferred FEUITL ....ovvveiieeveereee ettt rate e st esenneee e e 514 1,341 1,103
Depreciation of cost in excess of book value.........ccccccnen. (2,603) (2,458) (2,506)
IMPaIrmMEnt 10SS .c..ooverereerrerecenerreerene e - (13.,419) -

Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated entities ......... $ 2,370 $(10,127) $ 7.346

A summary of the components of our investment in unconsolidated entities as of December 31, 2003
and 2002, is as follows:

2003 2002
HOtEl IMIVESTMENES........covivieeieeeieiresee st etee e sersereetess et eresaeseesssrasasssessaseesens $114,178  $141,403
Land and condominium INVESTMENES .......coveveeeveereirerreseseesensesenssrsessssnns 2,523 2,452
Hotel 16SSEE INVESTMENES ..oevvvvieieieieeieieeee e eeree e senveseetaeeeernnseeesearenaan (148) (1,.912)

$116,553 $141,943

A summary of the components of our equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Hotel investments, including an impairment loss in
2002 OFf $13,419 e e $2,981 $ (8,852) $7,983
Hotel lessee OPErations ..........cceevevereenvererscrnirnneseroinencenensenesseas (611) (1.275) (637)
' $2,370  $(10.127) $7,346
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8. Debt

Debt at December 31, 2003 and 2002, consists of the following (in thousands):
Balance Qutstanding

Encumbered Interest Rate at Maturity December 31, December 31,
Hotels = December 31, 2003 Date 2003 2002
Promissory note none 3.129 June 2016 $ 650 $ 650
Senior unsecured term notes none 436 Oct. 2004 174,888 174,760
Senior unsecured term notes none 5.19® Oct. 2007 124,617 124,518
Senior unsecured term notes none 10.00 Sept. 2008 596,865 596,195
Senior unsecured term notes none 9.00 June 2011 298.158 297,907
Total unsecured debt® 8.42 1,195.178 1,194.030
Secured debt facility 14 hotels - December 2004 - -
Mortgage debt 10 hotels 3.62@ May 2006 148,080 -
Mortgage debt 15 hotels 5.96 Nov. 2007 131,721 134,738
Mortgage debt 7 hotels 7.54 April 2009 92,445 94,288
Mortgage debt 6 hotels 7.55 June 2009 69,566 70,937
Mortgage debt 8 hotels 8.70 May 2010 178,118 180,534
Mortgage debt 7 hotels 8.73 May 2010 138,200 140,315
Mortgage debt 1 hotel - 4.00® August 2008 15,500 -
Mortgage debt 1 hotel 723 October 2005 11,286 54,993
Mortgage debt 8 hotels "7.48 April 2011 50,305 -
Other 1 hotel 9.17 August 2011 6,956 7,299
Total secured debt 78 hotels 6.98 842,177 683,104
Total® 7.82% $2,037.355  $1,877.134
(a) Variable interest rate based on LIBOR, which was 1.1% as of December 31, 2003.
) These notes were matched with interest rate swap agreements that effectively converted the
fixed interest rate on the notes to a variable interest rate based on LIBOR.
(c) Interest rates are calculated based on the weighted average outstanding debt at December 31,
2003.

(@ Variable interest rate based on LIBOR. This debt may be extended at our option for up to two,
one-year periods.

(e) $100 million of this note was matched with interest rate swap agreements that effectively
converted the fixed interest rate on this note to a variable interest rate based on LIBOR,

We reported interest expense net of interest income of $2.3 million, $2.1 million and $2.9 million and
capitalized interest of $0.6 million, $0.8 million and $0.8 million, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Interest expense associated with the $300 million in senior debt that was repaid in October 2001,
relating to our terminated merger with MeriStar Hospitality Corporation, or MeriStar, was $5.5 million, and is
presented net of $2.9 million of interest income from the proceeds of the senior notes held in escrow, during the
year ended December 31, 2001.
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8. Debt — (continued)

We charged off $2.8 million and $3.2 million of unamortized deferred costs as a result of a reduction of
the line of credit commitments in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In 2001, we recorded charge-offs of $0.2 million
and $1 million of unamortized costs related to the prepayment of floating rate debt and the renewal of the line
of credit, respectively.

In June 2003, we entered into a new secured delayed draw facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank for up to
$200 million. Through the date of this filing, there have been no borrowings under this facility, and we have an
estimated $174 million of borrowing capacity based on the underwritten cash flows of the 14 hotels currently
securing this facility. The amount available to us under this facility will fluctuate, prior to conversion into
commercial mortgage backed security (CMBS) loans, depending upon the number of hotels provided as security
and the underwritten cash flows of those hotels, from time to time. This non-recourse facility has an initial term
of 18 months that can be extended for an additional six months at our option and carries a floating interest rate of
LIBOR plus 2.25 to 2.75 percent. The outstanding balances on this loan facility will be converted by the lender
into fixed rate or floating rate CMBS loans, and we have a one-time option to convert up to $75 million in
borrowings to a floating rate CMBS loan. Upon conversion, the fixed rate loans will have a term of 10 years,
and any floating rate loans will have a maximum term of five years.

In 2003, we made prepayments on two secured loans of $12.3 million and recorded gains from debt
extinguishment of $1.3 million.

In April 2003, we entered into a $150 million non-recourse facility consisting of a $115 million first
mortgage loan and $35 million of mezzanine financing, at a combined floating interest rate of LIBOR plus
2.50 percent. The mortgage loan is secured by 10 full service hotels. The equity interests in the related special
purpose ownership entities secure the mezzanine debt. The first mortgage loan and mezzanine debt mature in
May 2006, but may be extended at our option for up to two, one-year option periods. The proceeds were used to
pay off all then outstanding borrowings under our unsecured line of credit.

In March 2003, we completed the refinancing of $15.5 million of secured debt that was to mature in late
2003. Under the refinancing terms, this fixed rate debt was converted to a floating intetest rate of LIBOR plus
285 basis points effective August 2003. The new maturity is August 2008.

In 2003, by amendment, we reduced our unsecured line of credit commitments from $300 miilion to
$50 million and obtained more relaxed covenant levels. In March 2004, we elected to terminate our line of
credit, which is expected to result in the first quarter charge-off of unamortized loan costs of approximately
$0.3 million and produce cash savings of approximately $0.4 million during the remainder of 2004. At
December 31, 2003, and at the date of termination of the line of credit, there were no borrowings under the line
of credit, and we were in compliance with all applicable covenants.

Most of our mortgage debt is non-recourse to us and contains provisions allowing for the substitution of
collateral upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Most of our mortgage debt is prepayable, subject to various
prepayment penalties, yield maintenance or defeasance obligations. Our liability with regard to non-recourse
debt is generally limited to the guarantee of the borrowing entity’s obligations to pay for the lender’s losses
caused by misconduct, fraud or misappropriation of funds and other typical exceptions from the non-recourse
provisions in the mortgages, such as for environmental liabilities.
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8. Debt— (continued)

Our publicly-traded senior unsecured notes require that we satisfy total leverage, secured leverage and
interest coverage tests in order to: incur additional indebtedness except to refinance maturing debt with
replacement debt, as defined under our indentures; pay dividends in excess of the minimum dividend required to
meet the REIT qualification test; repurchase capital stock; or merge. As of the date of this filing, we have
satisfied all such tests, however, under the terms of two of our indentures, we are prohibited from repurchasing
any of our capital stock, whether common or preferred, subject to certain exceptions, so long as our debt-to-
EBITDA ratio, as defined in the indentures, exceeds 4.85 to 1. Our current debt-to-EBITDA ratio exceeds that
ratio and is expected to do so for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, we are prohibited from purchasing any of
our capital stock, except as permitted under limited exceptions, such as from the proceeds of a substantially
concurrent issuance of other capital stock.

If actual operating results fail to meet our current expectations, as reflected in our public guidance, or if
interest rates increase unexpectedly, we may be unable to continue to satisfy the incurrence test under the
indentures governing our senior unsecured notes. In such an event, we may be prohibited from utilizing the
undrawn amounts currently available to us under our $174 million secured debt facility, except to repay or
refinance maturing debt with similar priority in the capital structure, and may be prohibited from, among other
things, incurring any additional indebtedness or paying dividends on our preferred or common stock, except to
the extent necessary to satisfy the REIT qualification requirement that we distribute currently at least 90% of our
taxable income. In the event of our failure of this incurrence test, based upon our current estimates of taxable
income for 2004, we would be unable to distribute the full amount of dividends accruing under our outstanding
preferred stock in 2004 and, accordingly, could pay no dividends on our common stock.

As a consequence of the prolonged economic slowdown, its impact on the travel and lodging industries
and our higher secured debt levels, Moody’s lowered its ratings on our $1.2 billion in senior unsecured debt to
B1, in June 2003. This downgrade, along with a similar downgrade by Standard & Poor’s earlier in the year to
B, triggered a 50 basis point step-up in interest rates on $900 million of our senior unsecured debt, which will
continue in effect unless and until either Moody’s raises its ratings on our senior unsecured debt to Ba3 or
Standard & Poor’s raises its rating to BB-. In late 2003, Standard & Poor’s further reduced its rating on our
senior unsecured debt to B-.

Future scheduled principal payments on debt obligations at December 31, 2003, are as follows
(in thousands):

Year ‘
2004 ..o ettt s e § 192,333
2005 oot ettt eresre s s 28,089
2006 ..ottt 156,328
2007 oottt e ettt eas 258,793
2008 ...ttt ettt nnaen 629,300
2009 and thereafter .........ccovcvevinveniieieee e 776,765
2,041,608
Discount accretion OVer teIM.....uveevruerrerererieeereernieeeennnes (4,253)
$2,037.355

(a) Approximately $148 million of this debt may be extended at
our option for up to two, one-year periods.

41




FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

9. Derivatives

On the date we enter into a derivative contract, we designate the derivative as a hedge to the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or a firm commitment (referred to as a fair value
hedge), or the exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction (referred to as a cash flow hedge). For
a fair value hedge, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period of change, together with the offsetting
loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. The effect of that accounting is to reflect in
earnings the extent to which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value. For a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of other
comprehensive income (outside earnings) and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted
transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. At
December 31, 2003, all of our outstanding hedges were fair value hedges.

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our
risk-management objective and strategy, relating to our various hedge transactions, This process includes
linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or specific firm commitments. We
also formally assess (both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis} whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows or fair values of
hedged items and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods. When
we determine that a derivative is not (or has ceased to be) highly effective as a hedge, we will discontinue hedge
accounting, prospectively.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes. We limit these
risks by following established risk management policies and procedures including the use of derivatives. It is
our objective to use interest rate hedges to manage our fixed and floating interest rate position and not to engage
in speculation on interest rates. We manage interest rate risk based on the varying circumstances of anticipated
borrowings, and existing floating and fixed rate debt. We will generally seek to pursue interest rate risk
mitigation strategies that will result in the least amount of reported earnings volatility under generally accepted
accounting principles, while still meeting strategic economic objectives and maintaining adequate liquidity and
flexibility. Instruments that meet these hedging criteria are formally designated as hedges at the inception of the
derivative contract.

To manage the relative mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments, through
December 31, 2003, we had entered into fifteen interest rate swap agreements with five financial institutions
with an aggregate notional value of $400 million. These interest rate swap agreements modify a portion of the
interest characteristics of our outstanding fixed rate debt, without an exchange of the underlying principal
amount, and effectively convert fixed rate debt to a variable rate.

To determine the fair values of our derivative instruments, we use a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date. All methods of assessing fair
value result in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

The interest rate swap agreements held at December 31, 2003, are designated as fair value hedges, are
marked to market through the income statement, but are offset by the change in fair value of our swapped
outstanding fixed rate debt. The estimated unrealized net gain on these interest rate swap agreements was
approximately $5.5 million at December 31, 2003, and represents the amount we would receive if the agreements
were terminated, based on current market rates.
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9. Derivatives — (continued)

The fixed rates we will receive and the variable rates we will pay under these swaps, as of December 31,
2003, are summarized in the following table:
Weighted-average

Notional Amount Number of Spread Paid in Fixed Rate
Swap Maturity (in miilions) Swaps Excess of LIBOR Received
October 2004 $175 6 3.20% 7.38%
October 2007 125 5 4.03% 7.63%
November 2007 100 4 4.35% 7.46%
$400 3.77%® 7.42%

{a) Based on the weighted average as of December 31, 2003.

The amounts paid or received by us under the terms of the interest rate swap agreements are accrued as
interest rates change, and we recognize them as an adjustment to interest expense, which will have a
corresponding effect on our future cash flows. The interest rate swaps decreased interest expense by $7.2 million
and $4.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively and increased interest expense
by $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our interest rate swaps have monthly to semi-annual
settlement dates. Agreements such as these contain a credit risk in that the counterparties may be unable to fulfill
the terms of the agreement. We minimize that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of our counterparties, who
are limited to major banks and financial institutions, and we do not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparties. The Standard & Poor’s credit ratings for the financial institutions that are counterparties to our
interest rate swap agreements range from A+ to AA-.

To fulfill requirements under the $150 million secured loan facility executed in April 2003, we
purchased 6% interest rate caps with a notional amount of $150 million. We concurrently sold interest rate caps
with identical terms. These interest rate cap agreements have not been designated as hedges. The fair value of
both the purchased and sold interest rate caps were $0.2 million at December 31, 2003, resulting in no net
earnings impact.

10. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS 107 requires disclosures about the fair value of all financial instruments, whether or not
recognized for financial statement purposes. Disclosures about fair value of financial instruments are based on
pertinent information available to management as of December 31, 2003. Considerable judgment is necessary to
interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that we could realize on disposition of the financial instruments. The use of
different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair
value amounts.

Our estimates of the fair value of (i) accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate carrying value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments; (i) debt is based upon
effective borrowing rates for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities; and (iii) our interest
rate swaps and the hedged debt are recorded at estimates of fair value, which are based on the amount that we
estimate we would currently receive upon termination of these instruments at current market rates and with
reasonable assumptions about relevant future market conditions. The estimated fair value of our debt of
$2.0 billion is $2.1 billion at December 31, 2003,
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11. Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. To qualify as a REIT, we
must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we distribute at
least 90% of our taxable income to our stockholders. We currently intend to adhere to these requirements and
maintain our REIT status. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to corporate level federal income taxes on
net income we distribute to our stockholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be
subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates {including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and
. may not qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may
be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on
our undistributed taxable income. In addition, taxable income from non-REIT activities managed through TRSs
is subject to federal, state and local taxes.

We generally lease our hotels to wholly-owned TRSs that are subject to federal and state income taxes.
In 2003, we also contributed certain hotel assets to our wholly-owned TRSs. We account for income taxes in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS 109, we account for
income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Reconciliation between TRSs GAAP net loss and taxable loss:

The following table reconciles the TRS GAAP net loss to taxable loss for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001 (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
GAAP 1ELLOSS ..ottt sas e $(310,144) $(178,581) $(39,276)
GAARP net loss from REIT operations .........ccccceeeeerevcencenn. 171,463 123,595 6,064
GAAP net loss of taxable subsidiaries..........ccovereevevrnrenane (138,681) (54,986) (33,212)
Impairment loss not deductible for tax ...........cocccevvernennnne 39,303 - -
Tax loss in excess of book gains on sale of hotels.............. (31,423) - -
Depreciation and amortization™ ............ccovooeeerreeeereeeeennn. (1,625) - -
Employee benefits not deductible for tax ...........cccceevrennene. 2,381 (2,924) 5,085
Other book/tax differences...........ooovveverenieveierecvreccirerennns (2.997) 9 4,488
Tax loss of taxable subsidiaries ........cccoervevievievnrerecvnneenene, $(133.042) $ (57,901) $(23,639)

(a) The changes in book/tax differences in depreciation and amortization principally resulting from
book and tax basis differences, differences in depreciable lives and accelerated depreciation

methods.
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In 2002, we issued 1,025,800 depositary shares, representing 10,258 shares of our Series B preferred
stock at $24.37 per depositary share to yield 9.4%. We used the net proceeds of $23.8 million for working
capital and discretionary capital expenditures.

At December 31, 2003, all dividends then payable on the Series A and Series B preferred stock had been
paid.

FelCor LP Units

We are the sole general partner of FelCor LP and are obligated to contribute the net proceeds from any
issuance of our equity securities to FelCor LP in exchange for units of partnership interest, or Units,
corresponding in number and terms to the equity securities issued by us. Units of limited partner interest may
also be issued by FelCor LP to third parties in exchange for cash or property, and Units so issued to third parties
are redeemable at the option of the holders thereof for a like number of shares of our common stock or, at our
option, for the cash equivalent thereof. During 2003, 256,118 Units were exchanged for a like number of
common stock issued from treasury stock. During 2002, 5,713,185 Units owned by a subsidiary of IHG, were
exchanged for a like number of shares of our newly issued common stock, and 2,492 Units were redeemed for
$49,000 in cash. The exchange with THG resulted in an increase in our ownership of limited partnership interests
in FelCor LP from approximately 85% to 95%, which decreased the minority interest liability related to FelCor
LP by approximately $145 million.

During 2003, 5,713,185 shares of common stock were retired for the same number of treasury shares.

In consideration for the acquisition of all the equity interests in DJONT, FelCor LP issued 416,667 Units
on January 1, 2001, This transaction reduced our ownership of limited partnership interests in FelCor LP from
approximately 86% to approximately 85%, which increased the minority interest liability related to FelCor LP by
approximately $10 million at December 31, 2001.

13. Hotel Operating Revenue, Departmental Expenses and Other Property Operating Costs

Hotel operating revenue from continuing operations was comprised of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
, 2003 2002 2001
ROOM FEVENUE ..ottt $ 947,254 $ 979,830 $ 824,263
Food and beverage revenue.......ccooeeveeienennrennnrersienennenns 188,582 195,991 147,305
Other operating departments ..........cceceevrereeeenrerecneeennn. 63.003 64.718 56,565
Total hotel operating revenues .........cocvveeveverencens $1,198,839 $1,240.539 $1.028.133

Approximately 99.9% of our revenue was comprised of hotel operating revenues, which includes room
revenue, food and beverage revenue, and revenue from other hotel operating departments (such as telephone, .
parking and business centers), in 2003 and 2002. Approximately 90.3% of our revenue was comprised of hotel
operating revenues in 2001, These revenues are recorded net of any sales or occupancy taxes collected from our
guests. All rebates or discounts are recorded, when allowed, as a reduction in revenue, and there are no material
contingent obligations with respect to rebates or discounts offered by us. All revenues are recorded on an accrual
basis, as earned. Appropriate allowances are made for doubtful accounts and are recorded as a bad debt expense.
The remaining 0.1% of our revenue was from retail space rental revenue and other sources in 2003 and 2002. In
2001 approximately 9.4% of revenue was comprised of percentage rent from 88 hotel leases held by IHG, which
were acquired on July 1, 2001.
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13. Hotel Operating Revenue, Departmental Expenses and Other Property Operating Costs —
(continued)

We do not have any time-share arrangements and do not sponsor any guest frequency programs for
which we would have any contingent liability. We participate in guest frequency programs sponsored by the
brand owners of our hotels, and we expense the charges associated with those programs (typically consisting of a
percentage of the total guest charges incurred by a participating guest), as incurred. When a guest redeems
accumulated guest frequency points at one of our hotels, the hotel bills the sponsor for the services provided in
redemption of such points and records revenue in the amount of the charges billed to the sponsor. Associated
with the guest frequency programs, we have no loss contingencies or ongoing obligation beyond what is paid to
the brand owner at the time of the guest’s stay.

Included in total hotel operating revenue for 2003 was $12.9 million of hotel operating revenue from
the consolidation of our joint venture with Interstate in June 2003. This joint venture had been previously
accounted for by the equity method.

Hotel departmental expenses from continuing operations were comprised of the following
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
ROOML ettt s ettt $255,102 $249,120 $201,554
Food and beverage ........ccocovevinrerieieniionnnenienceccecirienne 150,975 153,123 114,071
Other operating departments..........ccocveeereiervevrnereernnnean, 30,011 29,913 25,333
Total hotel departmental eXpenses .........cocevveveenrenen, $436,088 $432,156 $340,958

Other property operating costs from continuing operations were comprised of the following
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Hotel general and administrative eXpense...........ccocvveuenn. $116,641 $116,073 $ 93,002
MATKEUNZ ..ovvviirieieeieiie e et 104,507 100,215 82,356
Repair and MainteNance ..........ccoververeeniiresrrremriesereeareasenes 69,171 65,274 51,573
UHHEES ...ttt 62,974 58,249 46,289
Total other property operating COStS...........cveevecuennenn. $353.293 $339.811 $273,220

Included in hotel departmental expenses and other property operating costs were hotel compensation
and benefit expenses of $397.4 million, $387.1 million and $301.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Included in hotel operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, was $9.7 million of hotel
operating expense from the consolidation of our joint venture with Interstate in June 2003. This joint venture
had been previously accounted for by the equity method.
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11. Income Taxes — (continued)

Summary of TRSs net deferred tax asset:

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our TRS had a deferred tax asset, prior to any valuation allowance,
primarily comprised of the following (in thousands):

2003 2002
Accumulated net operating losses of our TRS.......ccooi i $ 81,542 $ 30,986
" Tax property basis in excess 0f BOOK ......covooriiiiiriieieeeee e 14,476 -
Accrued employee benefits net deductible for taX......ccovvveevevverveiineecnninn, 8,651 7,746
Bad debt allowance not deductible for tax..........coccoevvveiviiiiiciicceciee e 420 537
Gross deferTed TaX ASSETS.....uiiiiireieecterieeee et st e et eeeee e st ee e rre e st eeeesenees 105,089 39,269
Valuation allOWANCE .......cccuvviiiiiriecie et ettt e e et senanes (105.089) (39,269)
Net deferred taX @SSEL.....cviiviveieericiriee ettt e e sren e $ - $ -

We have provided a 100% valuation allowance against this asset as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
due to the uncertainty of realization and, accordingly, no provision or benefit for income taxes is reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2003, the TRS has net operating
loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately $215,000 which are available to offset
future taxable income, if any, through 2023.

Reconciliation between REIT GAAP net loss and taxable income:

The following table reconciles REIT GAAP net loss to taxable income for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

GAARP net loss from REIT 0perations.........cocccveveeveveevieinsieeeresrennenenns $(171,463)  $(123,595) 3 (6,064)
Book/tax differences, net:

Depreciation and AMOTHZAtON ..o, 14,236 32,719 34,746

MINOTILY INEEIESTS ..ovivivirieriereerieieeeecreeeae e see e saesrerebesbesbesseesenes (19,241) (19,780) (18,680)

Tax loss in excess of book gains on sale of hotels ...........ocoevverneennn, (2,736) (4,681) (4,849)

Lease termination costs not deductible for tax ........ccceevveiviiriiieneinns - - 36,604

Impairment loss not deductible for taX........cccoveveiivivnieineccicienn 206,206 157,504 7,000

ORI ...ttt bt ere st eaes (184) 1.355 2.751

Taxable income subject to distribution requirement™

......................... § 26,818 $§ 43,522 $§ 51,508

(a) Book/tax differences in depreciation and amortization principally result from differences in
depreciable lives and accelerated depreciation methods.

(b) The dividend distribution requirement is 90%.

If we sell any asset acquired from Bristol Hotel Company, or Bristol, within 10 years after our merger
with Bristol, and we recognize a taxable gain on the sale, we will be taxed at the highest corporate rate on an
amount equal to the lesser of the amount of gain that we recognize at the time of the sale, or the amount of gain
that we would have recognized if we had sold the asset at the time of the Bristol merger for its then fair market
value. The sales of Bristol hotels that have been made to date have not resulted in any material amount of tax
liability. If we are successful in selling the hotels that we have designated as non-strategic, the majority of which
are Bristol hotels, we could incur corporate income tax with respect to the related built in gain, the amount of
which cannot yet be determined. The sales of Bristol hotels that have been made to date have not resulted in any
material amount of tax liability. If we are successful in selling the hotels that we have designated as non-
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11. Income Taxes — (continued)

strategic, the majority of which are Bristol hotels, we could incur corporate income tax with respect to the related
built in gain. At the current time, we believe that we will be able to avoid any substantial built in gain tax on
these sales through offsetting built in losses, like kind exchanges and other tax planning strategies.

Characterization of distributions:

For income tax purposes, distributions paid consist of ordinary income, capital gains, return of capital or
a combination thereof. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, distributions paid per share were
characterized as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Common Stock ‘
Ordinary inCome ...........ccocoveeerencnennn. $ - - $0.42 70.10 $0.94 55.01
Return of capital...........coooevevcnnennnn. - - 0.18 29.90 _0.76 44.99

$ - - $0.60 100.00 $1.70 100.00
Preferred Stock — Series A
Ordinary IfCOME ........c.ocvvvverereneescinnans $1.95 100.00 $1.95 100.00 $1.95  100.60
Preferred Stock — Series B
Ordinary income ..........ccccocevereerennen. $2.25 100.00 $2.25 100.00 $2.25 100.00

12. Capital Stock

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately $920 million of common stock, preferred stock, debt
securities, and/or common stock warrants available for offerings under shelf registration statements previously
declared effective.

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors is authorized to provide for the issuance of up to 20 million shares of preferred
stock in one or more series, to establish the number of shares in each series, to fix the designation, powers,
preferences and rights of each such series, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof.

In 1996, we issued 6.1 million shares of our Series A preferred stock at $25 per share. The Series A
preferred stock bears an annual cumulative dividend payable in arrears equal to the greater of $1.95 per share or
the cash distributions declared or paid for the corresponding period on the number of shares of common stock into
which the Series A preferred stock is then convertible. Each share of the Series A preferred stock is convertible at
the stockholder’s option to 0.7752 shares of common stock, subject to certain adjustments, and could not be
redeemed by us before April 30, 2001. During 2000, holders of 69,400 shares of Series A preferred stock
converted their shares to 53,798 common shares, which were issued from treasury shares.

In 1998, we issued 5.75 million depositary shares, fepresenting 57,500 shares of our Series B preferred
stock at $25 per depositary share. We may call the Series B preferred stock and the corresponding depositary
shares at $25 per depositary share. These shares have no stated maturity, sinking fund or mandatory redemption,
and are not convertible into any of our other securities. The Series B preferred stock has a liquidation preference
of $2,500 per share (equivalent to $25 per depositary share) and is entitled to annual cumulative dividends at the
rate of 9% of the liquidation preference (equivalent to $2.25 annually per depositary share).
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14. Taxes, Insurance and Lease Expense

Taxes, insurance and lease expense from continuing operations is comprised of the following (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Operating 16ase eXpense ..........o.ccoovveeeeerereermmercoreeeseseeeeseconees $ 59,038 $ 61,348 $ 70,995
Real estate and other taxes .......ocooveeeevenvieisnscerei, . 48,778 50,013 54,020
Property and general liability insurance............cccccoocvevennevennn. 17,512 15918 11,042
Total taxes, insurance and lease expense .................. $125.328 $127.279 $136,057

(a) Includes lease expense associated with 15 hotels owned by unconsolidated entities. Included in
lease expense is $13.0 million, $15.4 million and $21.8 million in percentage rent for the year ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

15. Land Leases and Hotel Rent

We lease land occupied by certain hotels from third parties under various operating leases that expire
through 2073. Certain land leases contain contingent rent features based on gross revenue at the respective
hotels. In addition, we recognize rent expense for 15 hotels that are owned by unconsolidated entities and are
leased to our wholly-owned TRSs. These leases expire through 2015 and require the payment of base rents and
contingent rent based on revenues at the respective hotels. Future minimum lease payments under our land lease
obligations and hotel leases at December 31, 2003, are as follows (in thousands):

Year
2004 ... $ 38,716
2005 e 37,850
2006.... i, 33,818
2007 et 13,485
2008. .o, 9,697
2009 and thereafter.........ccccoceeennnn. 132,878
$266.444
16. Merger Termination Costs

On May 9, 2001, we entered into a merger agreement with MeriStar. On September 21, 2001, we
announced jointly with MeriStar the termination of the merger. The decision to terminate the merger resulted
from the September 11 terrorist attacks and their subsequent adverse impact on the financial markets. As a result
of the merger termination, we expensed $19.9 million associated with the merger and $5.5 million in merger
financing costs for the year ended December 31, 2001.
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17. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except per share data);

2003 2002 2001 -
Numerator:
Loss from continuing Operations .........cccvueevrveersiereresnersennen, $(296,948) $(111,389)  $(44,909)
Less: Preferred dividends ...........ccoceveveireenrinrenereeesirreesenaee. (26.908) (26.292) (24.600)
Loss from continuing operations and applicable to
common Stockholders .........coevcevvvrrinnienininec e, (323,856) (137,681) (69,509
Discontinued Operations ..........cveievecrveveeireerieieeereseessessneanns (13,196) (67.192) 5,633
Net loss applicable to common stockholders..........c..ccoereernene $(337.052) $ (204,873) $(63,876)
Denominator: :
Denominator for basic loss per share — .
weighted average Shares .........ccccovivvvvcecrcniirninie e cenne. 58.657 54,173 52,622
Denominator for diluted loss per share — adjusted
weighted average shares and assumed conversions............... 58,657 54,173 52,622
Loss per share data:
Basic:
Loss from continuing Operations ............e..ooseerererrmsvrsersernrnns. $ (5.52) $ (2.59) $ (1.32)
Discontinued Operations .........c.ccccovnreereiiienseiieneins $ _(0.23) § (1249 § 041
NEELOSS ..ottt ettt b st sene. $ (575 § (378 $ (1.21)
Diluted:
Loss from continuing operations ..........cc.ccoeeeerevenvvennerecsennennns. $ (552 8§ (.54 $ (132
Discontinued operations ..........eveeeeerrevesreieriresesrernieesesseeen: § (0.23) $ (d.24 $§ 011
NEELOSS 1vevevvevierieteieieteetssereessereese st res s ressaesenesben e § (5.75 § (3.78) $§ (.21

Securities that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future that were not included in
computation of diluted earnings per share, because they would have been antidilutive for the periods presented,
are as follows (unaudited, in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
StOCK OPLIONS ...vviiiiiiriitie ettt vt e et sreeasetbsebeetaeeresennens - 7 49
Restricted shares granted but not vested........cccvveeverinvecennnnnen 303 317 355
Series A preferred Shares........c.coveivrercvienniere st 4,636 4,636 4,636

Series A preferred dividends that would be excluded from net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders, if the Series A preferred shares were dilutive, were $11.7 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

18. Commitments and Related Party Transactions

The acquisition of DJONT, one of our primary lessees, was completed effective January 1, 2001. In
consideration for the acquisition of DJONT, FelCor LP issued 416,667 units of limited partnership interest valued
at approximately $10 million. The acquisition of DJONT required negotiations between us and the owners of
DJONT, including Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr., our President, Chief Executive Officer, and a director of FelCor, and
the children of Charles N. Mathewson, a former director of FelCor. The interests of Mr. Corcoran and Mr.
Mathewson were in direct conflict with our interests in these negotiations and, accordingly, they abstained from
participation in our board of directors’ discussion and vote on this matter.
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18. Commitments and Related Party Transactions — (continued)

We shared the executive offices and certain employees with FelCor, Inc. (controlled by Thomas J.
Corcoran, Jr., President and CEQ), and it paid its share of the costs thereof, including an allocated portion of the
rent, compensation of certain personnel, office supplies, telephones, and depreciation of office furniture, fixtures,
and equipment. Any such allocation of shared expenses must be approved by a majority of our independent
directors. FelCor, Inc. had a 10% ownership interest in one hotel and limited other investments. FelCor, Inc.
paid $46,000, $50,000 and $45,000 for shared office costs in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2001, completed the acquisition of leases with respect to 12 hotels that had been
leased to and operated by IHG. In consideration for the acquisition of such leases and termination of the related
management agreements, we issued 413,585 shares of our common stock, valued at approximately $10 million,
to THG. We acquired the remaining leases held by IHG, effective July 1, 2001. We contributed these leases to
our TRSs. In consideration for these 88 leases, we issued 100 shares of our common stock and caused our
subsidiaries to agree to new long-term management agreements with subsidiaries of IHG to manage these hotels.
The acquisition of the leases held by IHG involved negotiations between us and JHG. Richard C. North, a
director of FelCor, was the Group Finance Director of IHG. THG, through its affiliates, owns approximately
17% of our outstanding shares and units. The interest of IHG in those negotiations was in direct conflict with
our interests. Mr. North abstained from participating in any discussion or vote by our board relating to these
transactions.

Following the events of September 11, 2001, certain types of insurance coverage, such as for acts of
terrorism, were only available at a high cost. In an effort to keep our cost of insurance within reasonable limits,
we have only purchased terrorism insurance for those hotels that are secured by mortgage debt, as required by
our lenders. Qur terrorism insurance has per occurrence and aggregate limits of $50 million. We have
established a self-insured retention of $250,000 per occurrence for general liability insurance with regard to 68 of
our hotels; the remainder of our hotels participate in general liability programs of our managers, with no
deductible. Due to the increase in our general liability deductible for the 68 hotels, we maintain reserves to cover
the estimated ultimate uninsured liability for losses with respect to reported and unreported claims incurred as of
the end of each accounting period. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our reserve for this self-insured portion of
general liability claims was $4.2 million and $2.3 million, respectively. Our property program has a $100,000 all
risk deductible, a deductible of 2% of insured value for named windstorm and a deductible of 5% of insured
value for California quake. No reserves have been established as of December 31, 2003, for these property
deductibles, as no related losses are estimated to have been incurred. Should such uninsured or not fully insured
losses be substantial, they could have a material adverse impact on our operating results and cash flows.

We lease the San Francisco Holiday Inn Select Downtown & Spa hotel under a lease that expires at the
end of 2004, In May 2003, the lessor asserted that we were in default of our obligations for maintenance, repair
and replacement under the lease, and asserted that the cost of correcting the-alleged deficiencies was
approximately $13.9 million. The lessor subsequently asserted that we were also in default of our capital
expenditure obligations under the lease in the approximate amount of $3 million. In October 2003, we reached a
partial settlement with the lessor, pursuant to which we paid the lessor $296,000 in full satisfaction and discharge
of certain maintenance obligations that the lessor had valued in its original claim at $470,300. We continued to
make routine repairs and expend previously approved capital on the hotel and, in December 2003, entered into a
tolling agreement and letter of intent, pursuant to which the parties expressed their intent to seek to resolve the
disputes between them, terminate the lease and transfer the hotel to the lessor, and established a process for
negotiation and, if necessary, mediation and arbitration of the disputes. Following the completion of our
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18. Commitments and Related Party Transactions — (continued)

evaluation of the remainder of the lessor’s claims, we engaged in negotiations with the lessor and, in February
2004, reached a settlement, currently subject to the execution of definitive documentation and the approval of the
parties’ respective boards of directors or governing bodies. Under the terms of the settlement, we agreed to pay
the lessor $5 million (representing an estimated $1.2 million in rent for the last half of 2004 and approximately
$3.8 million for repair, maintenance and capital issues, of which approximately $0.8 million was accrued at
December 31, 2003, for specifically identified capital items) and transfer our interest in the hotel to the lessor as
of June 30, 2004, in exchange for which we will be relieved of the obligation to make any capital improvements
to the hotel which are not specifically agreed to and, will receive a full release of all known and unknown claims
and further obligations to the lessor. In addition, we are seeking a release of any termination liability to IHG
under their management agreement with respect to this hotel upon its termination.

There is no litigation pending or known to be threatened against us or affecting any of our hotels, other
than claims arising in the ordinary course of business or which are not considered to be material. Furthermore,
most of these claims are substantially covered by insurance. We do not believe that any claims known to us,
individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on us.

Our hotels are operated under various management agreements that call for base management fees, which
range from 2% to 7% of hotel room revenue and generally have an incentive provision related to the hotel’s
profitability. In addition, the management agreements generally require us to invest approximately 3% to 4% of
revenues in capital maintenance. The management agreements have terms from 10 to 20 years and generally have
renewal options.

With the exception of 95 hotels whose rights to use a brand name are contained in the management
agreement governing their operations, and seven of our hotels that do not operate under a nationally recognized
brand name, each of our hotels operates under a franchise or license agreement. Typically, our franchise or
license agreements provide for a royalty fee of 4% of room revenues to be paid to the franchisor.

In the event we breach one of our Embassy Suites Hotels franchise license agreements, in addition to
losing the right to use the Embassy Suites Hotels name for the operation of the applicable hotel, we may be
liable, under certain circumstances, for liquidated damages equal to the fees paid to the franchisor with respect to
that hotel during the three preceding years.

19. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure

At December 31, 2003, approximately $6 million of aggregate preferred stock dividends had been
declared for payment in January 2004. At December 31, 2002, and 2001 approximately $15 million and
$8 million, respectively, of aggregate preferred stock dividends, common stock and FelCor LP unit distributions
had been declared for payment in the following January.

In 2003 we allocated $2.3 million of minority interest to additional paid in capital due to the exchange of
256,118 units for common stock.

As the result of IHG’s 2002 exchange of 5,713,185 units for common stock, we allocated $72.5 million
of minority interest to additional paid in capital. In 2001 we allocated $5 million to minority interest from
additional paid in capital related to the issuance of 416,667 units for the acquisition of DJONT.

52




FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

20. Stock Based Compensation Plans

We sponsor four restricted stock and stock option plans, or the FelCor Plans. In addition, upon
completion of the merger with Bristol in 1998, we assumed two stock option plans previously sponsored by
Bristol, or the Bristol Plans. We were initially obligated to issue up to 1,271,103 shares of our common stock
pursuant to the Bristol Plans. No additional options may be awarded under the Bristol Plans. The FelCor Plans
and the Bristol Plans are referred to collectively as the Plans.

We are authorized to issue 3,700,000 shares of common stock under the FelCor Plans pursuant to
awards granted in the form of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, and restricted stock. All
options have 10-year contractual terms and vest either over five equal annual installments (20% per year),
beginning in the year following the date of grant or 100% at the end of a four-year vesting term. Under the
FelCor Plans, there were approximately 1,064,407 shares available for grant at December 31, 2003.

The options outstanding under the Bristol Plans generally vest either in four equal annual installments
(25% per year) beginning in the second year following the original date of award, in five equal annual
instaliments (20% per year) beginning in the year following the original date of award, or on a single date that is
three to five years following the original date of the award. Options covering 93,126 shares were outstanding
under the Bristol Plans at December 31, 2003.

Stock Options

A summary of the status of our non-qualified stock options under the Plans as of December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, and the changes during these years are presented in the following tables:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
No. Shares of Average No. Shares of Average No. Shares of Average
Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise
Options Prices Options Prices Options Prices
Outstanding at beginning of the year.... 1,977,474 $22.85 2,041,212 $22.85 1,900,780 $23.33
Granted........ccoeoevievviiveiiceieee s 300,000 $17.94
Exercised.....cooevveiiiiiniiiici e, (48,806) $10.33
Forfeited .......ccooeoniriiicniicc (79.286) $22.15 (63.738) $22.82 (110,762) $23.33
Outstanding at end of year ................... 1,898,188 $22.88 1,977,474 $22.85 2,041,212 $22.85
Exercisable at end of year.................... 1,651,238 $23.71 1,641,944 $23.75 1,546,913 $23.84
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Number Wgtd. Avg. Number
Range of Outstanding Remaining Wgtd Avg. Exercisable Watd. Avg.
Exercise Prices at 12/31/03 Life Exercise Price at 12/31/03 Exercise Price
$15.62 to $22.56 1,534,888 4.40 $21.06 1,287,938 $18.26
$24.18 to $36.12 298,300 2.63 $29.34 298,300 $29.34
$36.63 65,000 3.48 $36.63 65,000 $36.63
$15.62 t0 $36.63 1,898,188 4.09 $22.90 1,651,238 $23.71

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for 2001 and 2000 when options were
granted: dividend yield of 12.44% to 11.28%; risk free interest rates are different for each grant and range from
4.33% to 6.58%; the expected lives of options are six years; and volatility of 21.04% for 2001 grants and 18.22%
for 2000 grants. The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2001, was $0.85 per share. We
issued no stock options in 2003 and 2002.
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Restricted Stock

A summary of the status of our restricted stock grants as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, and the
changes during these years are presented below:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Fair Market Fair Market ' Fair Market

Value Value Value

No. Shares at Grant No. Shares at Grant No. Shares at Grant
Outstanding at beginning of the year.. 633,281 $23.73 570,575 $24.40 367,575 $25.01

Granted®:

With immediate vestingo’) ............... 27,400 $10.98 19,100 $17.55 14,300 $23.74
With 5-year pro rata vesting............ 70,350 $10.98 43,606 $17.71 214,000 $22.89
Forfeited ...... e e e (25.300) $20.23
Outstanding at end of year ................. 731,031 $22.03 633281 $23.73 570,575 $24.40
Vested atend of year.........ccoevvenrnee. 431,150 $21.49 316,715 $21.78 215,795 $24.09

(a) All shares granted are issued out of treasury except for 6,900, 4,100, and 2,700 of the restricted
shares issued to directors during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively.

(b) Shares awarded to directors.

21. Employee Benefits

We offer a 401(k) plan, health insurance benefits and a deferred compensation plan to our employees.
Our matching contribution to our 401(k) plan was $0.6 miltion, $0.5 million, and $0.5 million and the cost of
health insurance benefits were $0.6 million, $0.6 million, and $0.5 million during the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The deferred compensation plan we offer is available only to directors and
qualifying senior officers. We make no matching or other contributions to the deferred compensation plan, other
than the payment of its operating and administrative expenses.

The employees at our hotels are employees of the respective management companies. Under the
management agreements, we reimburse the management companies for the compensation and benefits related to
the employees who work at our hotels. We are not, however, the sponsors of their employee benefit plans and
have no obligation to fund these plans.

22, Segment Information
SFAS 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” requires the

disclosure of selected information about operating segments. Based on the guidance provided in the standard, we
have determined that our business is conducted in one operating segment.
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The following table sets forth revenues for continuing operations, and investment in hotel assets

represented by, the following geographical areas as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 (in thousands):

Revenue™ Investment in Hotel Assets
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

California........ $ 199,088 $ 207,094 $§ 195376 $ 677,381 § 689,761 § 689,791
Texas.....ccconeeen, 208,516 216,252 189,874 766,134 839,192 867,263
Florida.............. 132,963 133,995 130,402 515,640 547,627 540,155
Georgia ............ 94,636 96,862 87,818 359,004 320,890 318,268
Other states....... 543,373 565,992 519,565 1,615,529 1,780,837 1,793,950
Canada............ 21,285 21,990 15,290 56.276 77,311 74,771

Total ..... $1,199.861 $1,242.185  $1,138.325 $3,989.964 $4.255,618 $4,284,198

(a) Prior to January 1, 2001, all of the revenues that we derived from hotel assets consisted of

percentage lease revenue. Effective January 1, 2001, we acquired 96 hotel leases and effective
July 1, 2001, we acquired the remaining 88 hotel leases. Upon acquisition of these leases, our
revenue derived from hotel assets became hotel operating revenues, including room revenues,
food and beverage revenue and other hotel operating revenue.

23. Recently Issued Statements of Financial Aecounting Standards

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (SFAS 150). This statement establishes standards for how an
issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It
requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some
circumstances). Many of those instruments were previously classified as equity. This statement is effective for
financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of
the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. On November 7, 2003, the FASB deferred for an indefinite
period certain provisions of SFAS 150 relating to the classification and measurement of mandatorily redeemable
non-controlling interests. We believe we do not have any such interests. The implementation of the remaining
effective provisions of SFAS 150 did not impact our financial condition, results of operation or liquidity.

FASB Interpretation, or FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
ARB 51" was issued in January 2003. In December 2003, FASB issued FIN No. 46R which replaced FIN 46
and clarified Accounting Research Bulletin 51. This interpretation provides guidance on how to identify a
variable interest entity and determine when the assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests and results of
operations of a variable interest entity should be consolidated by the primary beneficiary. The primary
beneficiary is the enterprise that will absorb a majority of the variable interest entity's expected losses or receive
a majority of the expected residual returns as a result of holding variable interests. The recognition and
measurement provisions of this FIN apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003, and apply to the first interim or annual period ending after December 15, 2003, for entities acquired before
February 1, 2003 (as deferred by FASB Staff Position No. FIN 46-6). This FIN requires the consolidation of
results of variable interest entities in which we are the primary beneficiary. As of December 31, 2003, we did
not own an interest in a variable interest entity that met the consolidation requirements and, as such, the adoption
of FIN No. 46 did not have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.
Interests in entities acquired or created after December 31, 2003 will be evaluated based on FIN No. 46R criteria
and consolidated, if required.

55




FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (continued)

24, Quarterly Operating Results (unaudited)

Our unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
follows (in thousands, except per share data). In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of
normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. It
is also management’s opinion, however, that quarterly operating data for hotel enterprises are not indicative of
results to be achieved in succeeding quarters or years. In order to obtain a more accurate indication of
performance, there should be a review of operating results, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for a
period of several years.

First Second Third Fourth
2003 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

TOtAL TEVEIUES ...veevtiieeiseeeeietee et ste ettt see v s b ssaearesenbee e $ 289,109 §$ 310,130 $ 308,739 $291,883
Net loss from continuing operations .........cc.ccecevvereeneseriereennns $ (22,807) $ (13,322) $(114,699) $(146,120)
Discontinued OPErations ..........ccocvcreereereierisrereerecssesveeseressenens § 1,716 $ (6,881) $ (11,218) $ 3,187
NEELIOSS® oot es e e ee e $ (21,091) $ (20,203) $(125,917) $(142,933)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders..........ccccceveeneee. $ (27,817) § (26,931) $(132,644) $(149,660)
ComPrehensive LOSS .....veveieriireieereeeeesiesrrneraneee st aresaeresseseens $ (16,272) $ (13,987) $(126,098) $(144,210)
Diluted per common share data: ,

Net loss from continuing Operations..........c..cvcervvreeucerrirenns § @O5SHS 039 s Q071 $ 60

Discontinued OPETations .......ccevvvcrererrereererieserenserensesseenennns $ 003 § (012) $§ (0199 § 0.05

NELLOSS ittt et et eae et sve bt e s s ans $ (048§ (046) § (226) § (2.55

Weighted average common shares outstanding ................... 58,532 58,591 58,690 58,801

(a) The second, third, and fourth quarters net loss include impairment charges of $7.8 million,
$112.7 million and $125.0 million, respectively.

First Second Third Fourth
2002 Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter
TOtAl FEVEIUERS ..vovreeeeeeeeeee e eeere e seeseseeeeeeeeene e 3. 306,177 $ 331,692 $ 312,330 $291,986
Net income (loss) from continuing operations.............coc.ov.ve... § (6,748) $ 11434 § (8,077) $(107,998)
Discontinued Operations ...........cceeceviereecririneeeeierereresree s $ 602 $ 1,568 § 996 $ (70,358)
Net income (1058)® ....oveveireieeeeerevee e $ (6,146) $ 13,002 $ (7,081) $(178,356)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders ............ $ (12,296) $§ 6,314 $ (13,808) $(185,083)
Comprehensive income (1088).......c.vvvreevevreirireersersriine e § (5565 § 15261 $ (4,319) $(183,681)
Diluted per common share data: :
Net income (loss) from continuing operations..................... $§ (024 § 009 § (028 $§ (1.96)
Discontinued Operations ........c...cceveeevviveeiererereresereeesennans $§ 001 $ 003 $ 002 $ (12D
Net InCome (LOSS) ..oveivvireerirerieiireeestire ettt sreve s $ (023 § 012 $ (026 % (3.17)
Weighted average common shares outstanding.............. i 52,717 53,093 52,729 58,450

(a) The fourth quarter net foss includes an impairment charge of $157.5 million.
In accordance with SFAS 144, amounts previously reported in continuing operations have been

reclassified to discontinued operations upon sale of hotels or the designation of hotels as “held for sale” in
subsequent periods. ‘
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